
 

Development 
Control 

Committee 

 

Title: Agenda 
Date: Thursday 7 December 2017 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Conference Chamber 
West Suffolk House 

Western Way 
Bury St Edmunds 

IP33 3YU 

Full Members: Chairman Jim Thorndyke 

 Vice Chairman Carol Bull and David Roach 

 Conservative 

Members (12) 

Terry Clements 

Robert Everitt 
Paula Fox 

Susan Glossop 
Ian Houlder 
 

Ivor Mclatchy 

Alaric Pugh 
Andrew Smith 

Peter Stevens 
 

 Charter Group 
Members (2) 

David Nettleton 
 

Julia Wakelam 
 

 UKIP Group 

Member (1) 

Jason Crooks 

 

 

 Haverhill Indys 
Member (1) 

John Burns  

Substitutes: Conservative 
Members (5) 

Awaiting nominations from the Group 

 Charter Group 

Member (1) 

Diane Hind 

 

 

 

 UKIP  Group 
Member (1) 

Barry Robbins 
 

 
 

 Haverhill Indys 
Member (1) 

Tony Brown  

** THERE ARE NO SITE VISITS REQUIRED FOR THIS AGENDA ** 

Interests – 

Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation: 

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 

disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 

sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 

disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Quorum: Six Members 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

Committee 
administrator: 

Helen Hardinge 
Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 01638 719363 
Email: helen.hardinge@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE: 
AGENDA NOTES 

 

 
Subject to the provisions of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, 

all the files itemised in this Schedule, together with the consultation replies, 
documents and letters referred to (which form the background papers) are available 
for public inspection.  

 
All applications and other matters have been considered having regard to the Human 

Rights Act 1998 and the rights which it guarantees. 
 
Material Planning Considerations 

 
1. It must be noted that when considering planning applications (and related 

matters) only relevant planning considerations can be taken into account. 
Councillors and their Officers must adhere to this important principle 

which is set out in legislation and Central Government Guidance. 
 
2. Material Planning Considerations include: 

 Statutory provisions contained in Planning Acts and Statutory regulations and 
Planning Case Law 

 Central Government planning policy and advice as contained in Circulars and 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 The following Planning Local Plan Documents 

 
Forest Heath District Council St Edmundsbury Borough Council 

Forest Heath Local Plan 1995 St Edmundsbury Borough Local Plan 
1998 and the Replacement St 
Edmundsbury Borough Local Plan 2016 

The Forest Heath Core Strategy 2010, 
as amended by the High Court Order 

(2011) 

St Edmundsbury Borough Council Core 
Strategy 2010 

Joint Development Management 
Policies 2015 

Joint Development Management Policies 
2015 

 Vision 2031 (2014) 
Emerging Policy documents  

Core Strategy – Single Issue review  

Site Specific Allocations  

 
 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents eg. Affordable Housing SPD 

 Master Plans, Development Briefs 
 Site specific issues such as availability of infrastructure, density, car parking 

 Environmental; effects such as effect on light, noise overlooking, effect on 
street scene 

 The need to preserve or enhance the special character or appearance of 
designated Conservation Areas and protect Listed Buildings 

 Previous planning decisions, including appeal decisions 

 Desire to retain and promote certain uses e.g. stables in Newmarket. 
 

 



 
 
 

3. The following are not Material Planning Considerations and such matters must not 
be taken into account when determining planning applications and related matters: 
 Moral and religious issues 

 Competition (unless in relation to adverse effects on a town centre as a whole) 
 Breach of private covenants or other private property / access rights 

 Devaluation of property 
 Protection of a private  view 

 Council interests such as land ownership or contractual issues 
 Identity or motives of an applicant or occupier  

 

4. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that an 
application for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 

Development Plan (see table above) unless material planning considerations 
indicate otherwise.   

 

5. A key role of the planning system is to enable the provision of homes, buildings 
and jobs in a way that is consistent with the principles of sustainable development.  

It needs to be positive in promoting competition while being protective towards the 
environment and amenity.  The policies that underpin the planning system both 
nationally and locally seek to balance these aims. 

 
Documentation Received after the Distribution of Committee Papers 

 
Any papers, including plans and photographs, received relating to items on this 
Development Control Committee agenda, but which are received after the agenda has 

been circulated will be subject to the following arrangements: 
(a) Officers will prepare a single Committee Update Report summarising all 

representations that have been received up to 5pm on the Thursday before 
each Committee meeting. This report will identify each application and what 
representations, if any, have been received in the same way as representations 

are reported within the Committee report; 
(b) the Update Report will be sent out to Members by first class post and 

electronically by noon on the Friday before the Committee meeting and will be 
placed on the website next to the Committee report. 

 

Any late representations received after 5pm on the Thursday before the Committee 
meeting will not be distributed but will be reported orally by officers at the meeting. 

 
Public Speaking 
 

Members of the public have the right to speak at the Development Control Committee, 
subject to certain restrictions.  Further information is available on the Councils’ 

websites. 
 

 



 
 

 
  

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE: 
DECISION MAKING PROTOCOL 

 

The Development Control Committee usually sits once a month.  The meeting is open 
to the general public and there are opportunities for members of the public to speak 

to the Committee prior to the debate.   

Decision Making Protocol 
This protocol sets out our normal practice for decision making on development control 

applications at Development Control Committee.  It covers those circumstances where 
the officer recommendation for approval or refusal is to be deferred, altered or 

overturned.  The protocol is based on the desirability of clarity and consistency in 
decision making and of minimising financial and reputational risk, and requires 
decisions to be based on material planning considerations and that conditions meet 

the tests of Circular 11/95: "The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions."  This 
protocol recognises and accepts that, on occasions, it may be advisable or necessary 

to defer determination of an application or for a recommendation to be amended and 
consequently for conditions or refusal reasons to be added, deleted or altered in any 

one of the circumstances below.  
 Where an application is to be deferred, to facilitate further information or 

negotiation or at an applicant's request. 

 Where a recommendation is to be altered as the result of consultation or 
negotiation:  

o The presenting Officer will clearly state the condition and its reason or 
the refusal reason to be added/deleted/altered, together with the 
material planning basis for that change.  

o In making any proposal to accept the Officer recommendation, a Member 
will clearly state whether the amended recommendation is proposed as 

stated, or whether the original recommendation in the agenda papers is 
proposed. 

 Where a Member wishes to alter a recommendation:  

o In making a proposal, the Member will clearly state the condition and its 
reason or the refusal reason to be added/deleted/altered, together with 

the material planning basis for that change.  
o In the interest of clarity and accuracy and for the minutes, the presenting 

officer will restate the amendment before the final vote is taken.  

o Members can choose to; 
 delegate the detailed wording and reason to the Assistant Director 

(Planning and Regulatory); 
 delegate the detailed wording and reason to the Assistant Director 

(Planning and Regulatory) following consultation with the Chair 

and Vice Chair(s) of Development Control Committee.  
 Where Development Control Committee wishes to overturn a recommendation 

and the decision is considered to be significant in terms of overall impact; harm 
to the planning policy framework, having sought advice from the Assistant 
Director (Planning and Regulatory) and the Assistant Director (Human 

Resources, Legal and Democratic) (or Officers attending Committee on their 
behalf); 

o A final decision on the application will be deferred to allow associated 
risks to be clarified and conditions/refusal reasons to be properly drafted.  

o An additional officer report will be prepared and presented to the next 

Development Control Committee detailing the likely policy, financial and 



 
 
 

reputational etc risks resultant from overturning a recommendation, and 
also setting out the likely conditions (with reasons) or refusal reasons.  
This report should follow the Council’s standard risk assessment practice 

and content.  
o In making a decision to overturn a recommendation, Members will clearly 

state the material planning reason(s) why an alternative decision is being 
made, and which will be minuted for clarity. 

 In all other cases, where Development Control Committee wishes to overturn a 
recommendation: 

o Members will clearly state the material planning reason(s) why an 

alternative decision is being made, and which will be minuted for clarity. 
o In making a proposal, the Member will clearly state the condition and its 

reason or the refusal reason to be added/deleted/altered, together with 
the material planning basis for that change. 

o Members can choose to; 

 delegate the detailed wording and reason to the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Regulatory) 

 delegate the detailed wording and reason to the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Regulatory) following consultation with the Chair 
and Vice Chair(s) of Development Control Committee 

 Member Training 
o In order to ensure robust decision-making all members of Development 

Control Committee are required to attend annual Development Control 
training.  

 

Notes 

 
Planning Services (Development Control) maintains a catalogue of 'standard 

conditions' for use in determining applications and seeks to comply with Circular 
11/95 "The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions." 

Members/Officers should have proper regard to probity considerations and relevant 

codes of conduct and best practice when considering and determining applications. 

 

 



Agenda 

 
Procedural Matters 

 

Part 1 - Public 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 

Page No 

2.   Substitutes  

 Any Member who is substituting for another Member should so 

indicate together with the name of the relevant absent Member. 
 

 

3.   Minutes 1 - 24 

 To confirm the minutes of the meetings held on 2 November 
2017 (copies attached). 
 

 

4.   Planning Application DC/17/1765/RM - Western Part of 
the Suffolk Business Park Extension, Bury St Edmunds 

25 - 38 

 Report No: DEV/SE/17/046 
 
Reserved Matters Application - Submission of details under 

DC/16/2825/OUT - the means of appearance, layout, scale and 
landscaping for 2no. industrial/logistics buildings (B8 with 

ancillary B1a offices), together with associated car parking, 
service yard and landscaping as amended by plans and details 

received 
 

 

5.   Planning Application DC/17/1047/OUT - Former Howard 

Community Primary School, St Olaves Road, Bury St 
Edmunds 

39 - 62 

 Report No: DEV/SE/17/047 

 
Outline Planning Application (Means of Access to be considered) - 

Redevelopment of site to provide up to a maximum 79 no. 
residential units (Class C3) and a new community centre also 
incorporating a replacement Carousel Children's Centre (Class 

D1) with associated parking, open space, landscaping and 
infrastructure 
 

 

6.   Planning Application DC/17/2237/HH - Tamarisk, 4 
Barrow Hill, Barrow 

63 - 70 

 Report No: DEV/SE/17/048 
 
Householder Planning Application - (i) Single storey side 

extension including attached garage (demolition of existing 
garage) (ii) Replacement of existing flat roof over rear extension 

with pitched roof 
 

 



 
 
 

7.   Planning Application DC/15/2151/OUT - Great Wilsey 
Park, Little Wratting 

71 - 78 

 Report No: DEV/SE/17/049 

 
Outline Application (Means of Access to be considered) - 

Residential development of up to 2,500 units (within use classes 
C2/C3); two primary schools; two local centres including retail, 
community and employment uses (with use classes 

A1/A2/A3/A4/A5, B1 and D1/D2; open space; landscaping and 
associated infrastructure 
 

 



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 

Special 

Development 

Control Committee   

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Special Development Control Committee held on 

Thursday 2 November 2017 at 10.00 am at the Conference Chamber, 

West Suffolk House,  Western Way, Bury St Edmunds IP33 3YU 
 
Present: Councillors 

 
  Chairman Jim Thorndyke 

Vice Chairman Carol Bull and David Roach 
John Burns 

Terry Clements 
Jason Crooks 
Robert Everitt 

Paula Fox 
Susan Glossop 
 

Ian Houlder 

Ivor Mclatchy 
David Nettleton 
Alaric Pugh 

Andrew Smith 
Julia Wakelam 
 

In attendance:  
Sara Broughton 
Beccy Hopfensperger 

Ward Member for Great Barton 
Ward Member for Fornham 

 

5. Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter Stevens. 
 
(Councillor Peter Stevens had previously indicated that to avoid the 

perception of pre-determination and bias due to his close association with the 
applicant in his capacity as Portfolio Holder for Operations, he would not be 

present during the consideration of Planning Application No: 
DC/17/0521/FUL.) 
 

6. Substitutes  
 
There were no substitutes present at the meeting. 

 

7. Planning Application DC/17/0521/FUL - Land North of Hollow Road 
Farm, Hollow Road, Fornham St Martin (Report No: DEV/SE/17/041)  

 
(Councillors Robert Everitt, Paula Fox, David Nettleton and David Roach 
declared local non-pecuniary interests as Members of Suffolk County Council 

and remained in the meeting for the consideration of this item.) 
 

Creation of a municipal operational hub, comprising waste transfer 
station, household waste recycling centre (including reuse building), 
fleet depot (including offices), public realm maintenance depot and 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

associated infrastructure including accesses, paths, internal roads 
and paths, parking, weighbridges, and landscaping (as amended) 

 
This application had been originally referred to the Development Control 

Committee on 19 July 2017 because it was a Major Development, the Parish 
Councils had objected, and because the applicant was the Council.  
Furthermore, the Officer recommendation to grant planning permission was 

contrary to the adopted Development Plan. 
 

The application was deferred from consideration at the 19 July meeting to 
enable Officers to source further information on specific matters identified by 
Members during discussion, for reporting back to the Committee.   

 
Amended plans and additional information were then submitted by the 

applicants; and the planning application was reconsidered at the meeting of 
the Committee on 21 September 2017, where Members resolved to grant 
planning permission. 

 
However, the Service Manager (Planning – Development) explained that a 

matter of policy was raised during the public speaking section of the 
Committee on 21 September, and following the meeting Officers provided the 

Chairman with advice with regard to this matter and recommended that 
further clarification of planning policy was required.  As a consequence, the 
Chairman asked Officers to provide a further report for the Committee on the 

application. 
 

Therefore, Report No DEV/SE/17/041 formed a comprehensive and stand-
alone Committee report.  The Service Manager advised the Committee that 
no regard was to be given to the previous reports considered in July and 

September. 
 

Furthermore, Members were required to consider the planning application 
afresh and to reach a resolution, with no weight to be given to the 
Committee’s resolution to grant planning permission in September. 

 
Lastly, the Service Manager reminded the Committee that if they resolved to 

grant planning permission Officers would consult the Secretary of State in 
order to provide him with an opportunity to consider whether to call the 
application in for his own determination. 

 
The Principal Planning Officer then advised on the following updates further to 

the publication of the agenda: 
 A change to the description of development which had been formally 

agreed with the applicants: 

Creation of a municipal operational hub, comprising waste transfer 
station, household waste recycling centre (including reuse building), 

fleet depot (including offices), public realm maintenance depot and 
associated infrastructure including accesses, paths, internal roads and 
paths, parking, weighbridges, and landscaping (as amended). 

 Corrections to the figures stated in Paragraph 162 of the report in 
respect of the Transport Assessment: 

For an average day over 7 days the proposal would result in 1660 trips 
associated with the HWRC, 44 trips associated with the WTS, 206 

Page 2



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

associated with the depot, 142 242 staff trips resulting in a total of 
2052 2152. 

The Officer explained that despite this typographical error the 
Transport Assessment had tested the correct figures and the Highways 

Authority had stated that they were satisfied that the Transport 
Assessment was sufficiently robust. 

 Paragraph 144 of the report was to be disregarded in totality, as it 

made reference to the footpath which had been removed from the 
application. 

 Planning Application DC/17/1359/FUL for a proposed agricultural 
storage building on land adjacent to the application site was a ‘live’ 
application seeking determination and had been mistakenly omitted 

from Paragraph 21 of the report.  The Officer explained that he would 
make reference to this application within his presentation, however, he 

did not consider it to have any impact on the application before 
Members. 

 Further representations in respect of the application had been received 

from the following (the contents of which were verbally summarised): 
 Mark Aston (resident of Fornham St Genevieve) 

 Simon Harding (on behalf of the Suffolk West Action Group) 
 Frank Stennett (of Stennetts in Ingham) 

 A collective letter from the Parishes of Fornham St Martin, 
Fornham All Saints and Great Barton which had been circulated 
to all Members of the Committee the day prior to the meeting. 

(Councillor Jason Crooks interjected at this point and explained that 
he had not received a copy of the letter in question, the Chairman 

subsequently tabled a copy to Councillor Crooks for his reference.) 
The Case Officer then responded in detail to the points raised in 
the letter from the Parishes.  In summary, the letter concluded 

by stating that the application was a departure from the adopted 
Development Plan, which the Officer report concurred with.  

Hence, there was nothing raised in the letter which changed the 
Officer recommendation of approval. 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer also addressed the meeting at this 

point and responded to the points raised within one of the ‘late’ 
representations with regard to predetermination.  The Officer 

confirmed that Members were aware of the provisions of Section 
25 of the Localism Act 2011 and the importance of not having a 
closed mind in respect of the proposal before Members that was 

seeking determination.  
 

Two Member site visits had taken place in respect of the application.  Officers 
were continuing to recommend that the application be approved, subject to 
the conditions set out in Paragraph 297 of Report No DEV/SE/17/041.  

 
The Principal Planning Officer then made his presentation which outlined the 

application in detail and in which the Committee was advised that the main 
issues required to determine the application were as follows, each of which 
were spoken on in detail with supporting visual slides: 

 The Principle of Development and Policy Context 
 Highways  

 Landscape and Visual Impact 
 Noise, Odour and Air Quality 

Page 3



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 Drainage and Protection of Groundwater 
 

In conclusion, the Officer summarised the benefits and dis-benefits of the 
scheme and explained the reasoning behind the balanced recommendation for 

approval. 
 
A second presentation was then made to the Committee by the Suffolk 

County Council Highways Officers in attendance.   
 

The presentation opened by explaining that the Highways Authority was only 
able to recommended refusal of an application where a development was 
considered to have a ‘severe’ impact on the highway network. 

 
In response to the application seeking determination, the Highways Officers 

explained that: 
 Whilst the Highway Authority maintained that the provision of a 

footway on Barton Hill was desirable the removal of this from the 

scheme did not result in them recommending refusal of the application; 
 In terms of the access, the proposed alternative of A134/A143 

Compiegne Way (as raised at the 19 July meeting) was not considered 
viable; and 

 With regard to traffic calming, whilst a safety audit had already been 
undertaken further audits would be carried out during the detailed 
design process and the design would be adjusted if considered 

necessary.  Furthermore, the Highway Authority continued to advise 
that a lower speed limit was not appropriate for the location. 

 
The Chairman then invited the following registered public speakers to speak 
in turn.  He explained that due to the level of public interest in this 

application, he had again (as per the 19 July and 21 September 
arrangements) varied the Committee’s protocol for public speaking on this 

occasion.  To be fair and equitable to all interested parties, each category of 
public speaking had been extended to allow a total time allocation of 12 
minutes instead of the usual three: 

 
(a) Objector – Mr Colin Hilder, representing Lark Valley Gravel Group and 

Hengrave Belt Amenity Group;  
 
(b) Objector - Mr Mark Aston, a resident of Fornham St Genevieve; 

 
(Prior to commencing his 3 minute speaking allocation Mr Aston sought 

clarification with regard to the location of the application site, which the Case 
Officer had referred to within his presentation as being “on the outskirts of 
Bury St Edmunds”, when it was located within the village of Fornham St 

Martin.  The Case Officer was invited to respond by the Chairman and he 
clarified that the site was within Fornham St Martin and was not within the 

town of Bury St Edmunds.) 
 
(c) Objector – Mrs Sarah Bartram, a resident of Great Barton and former 

resident of Fornham St Martin; 
 

(d) Objector – Mrs Penny Borrett, as resident of Fornham St Martin; 
 

Page 4



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

(e) Supporter – Mr Steve Lumley, occupier of an immediate neighbouring 
business at Hollow Road Farm; 

 
(f) Fornham St Martin cum St Genevieve Parish Council – Councillor 

Mike Collier, Chairman; 
 
(g) Fornham All Saints Parish Council – Councillor Howard Quayle, 

Chairman; 
 

(h) Great Barton Parish Council – Councillor Philip Reeve, Chairman; 
 
(i) Bury St Edmunds Town Council – Councillor Tom Murray, Chairman; 

 
(j) Ward Member – Councillor Beccy Hopfensperger, Fornham Ward; 

 
(k) Ward Member – Councillor Sarah Broughton, Great Barton Ward;  
 

(l) Agent – Mr Richard Sykes-Popham, agent for the applicant; and 
 

(m) Applicant – Mr Bryn Griffiths, Suffolk County Council, applicant.    
 

(At the end of the public speaking, the Chairman adjourned the meeting for a 
short comfort break.  The meeting resumed at 12.20pm.)  
 

A detailed debate then ensued with the following points raised: 
 

(a) Councillor David Nettleton asked if the policy matter had been raised 
by Councillor Philip Reeve (Great Barton Parish Council) on 21 
September 2017.  The Service Manager (Planning – Development) 

confirmed that was the case but explained that this point was not 
pertinent to the consideration of this application, which Members had 

been advised to consider afresh.   
Councillor Nettleton stressed that the site was in the countryside and 
the proposal was for an industrial complex.  In his opinion there had 

not been ‘exceptional circumstances’ demonstrated to justify the 
departure from the Development Plan. 

Councillor Nettleton also raised questions with regard to the process if 
the application was refused and concerning the weighting of the 
material considerations in respect of the application site. 

The Case Officer explained that if the application was refused the 
applicants would have the right of appeal, as per the normal process.  

With regard to the weightings in respect of the application site, the 
Officer stressed that Members were only considering the application 
before them, irrespective of the weight that could be attributed to 

alternative site(s). 
 

(b) Councillor Julia Wakelam also raised similar questions with regard to 
the weightings attributed to the benefits and dis-benefits of the 
proposal.  In response to which, the Case Officer clarified that the 

‘windfall’ of development, on those sites that would be vacated if the 
application was approved, was purely weighted on the benefits of that 

windfall development – not the financial benefits brought about by 
developing on those site(s). 

Page 5



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

The Service Manager (Planning - Development) further stressed that 
financial savings were not a material planning consideration. 

 
(c) Councillor Terry Clements spoke on his personal experience of 

navigating the roads in question as a passenger of an HGV vehicle and 
stressed the need to ensure that the movement of these types of 
vehicles was prescribed in terms of their access to the site via specific 

conditions.  He voiced disappointment that there was not to be a 
reduction in the speed limit. 

The Suffolk County Council Highways Officer that was in attendance 
responded and explained that the Highways Authority followed 
nationally prescribed guidance in respect of speed limits and reiterated 

that they did not consider a lower speed limit to be appropriate for the 
location. 

 
(d) Councillor Alaric Pugh spoke at length in support of the application.  He 

praised the Case Officer for such a comprehensive report in which the 

benefits of the scheme were clearly balanced and justified the 
recommendation for approval.  Councillor Pugh stressed the need to 

judge each application on his its own merits as not all land 
classifications were ‘equal’ when considered in detail;  

 
(e) Councillor Robert Everitt spoke in support of the application by making 

reference to the wider community benefit of the scheme in view of a 

growing population and increased need.  He also spoke on the 
established successful relationship between the Borough Council, and 

Forest Heath District Council in delivering waste services in partnership 
for many years – with colocation being the next logical step. These 
comments were echoed to some extent by both Councillors David 

Roach and Andrew Smith who believed that the future proofing and 
colocation benefits outweighed the disbenefits of the scheme; 

 
(f) Councillor John Burns raised concerns with regard to the application 

and also expressed disappointment at the lack of a reduced speed 

limit.  He raised caution with regard to proposed changes to household 
waste sites across the county and the impact this could have on the 

scheme.  Councillor Burns also raised questions with regard to waste 
limits and the potential cumulative traffic impacts with other future 
schemes, if approved. 

The Case Officer explained that the scheme was unable to mitigate 
future development, it would be down to the future development to 

address their own impacts alongside all other considerations.  In 
relation to any matters reserved by planning conditions in connection 
with the application Planning Officers would seek legal advice as to 

whether these could be dealt with via Officer delegation or if a report 
would need to be brought back to the Committee.   

Lastly, in respect of waste weight limits the Officer clarified that if the 
prescribed limits were exceeded by the facility then this would be a 
planning breach and would be subject to enforcement by the Planning 

Authority.  It would also be open to the applicant to apply for planning 
permission to vary the limits in advance. 

 

Page 6



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

(g) A number of other questions/comments were raised in relation to the 
following: what the site was used for, the capacity of the existing 

facility at Rougham Hill, the travel plan, land levels and disabled 
access. 

 
The Case Officer then responded to the points raised as follows: 
Land Use – the Planning Authority was not aware of what the land in 

question was specifically used for previously, only that it was 
‘agricultural use’; 

Capacity at Rougham Hill – the Committee was reminded that the 
Rougham Hill facility was purely a household waste site, at present.  
And that capacity was not a key driver in terms of the proposed 

scheme; 
Travel Plan – the Case Officer explained that facilities in rural locations 

limited the influence of a Travel Plan.  Hence, the applicants had 
emphasised staff movement within their Travel Plan.  Whilst it was 
recognised that there would be some increased staff movement across 

West Suffolk to the new facility, this was to be balanced against the 
significant decreases in HGV movements that the scheme would result 

in; 
Land Levels and Disabled Access – attention was drawn to the relevant 

slides within the presentation that demonstrated the land levels across 
the site.  The Case Officer assured the Committee that this would not 
affect users’ stability in anyway.  Members were also advised that the 

proposed facility included a number of accessibility benefits, a key one 
being that containers in the household waste recycling centre would be 

‘at level’, meaning there were no steps for users to navigate. 
 
Councillor Ian Houlder spoke in support of the application and stated that he 

considered that the reasons for departing from the adopted Development Plan 
had been comprehensively addressed by the Case Officer.  He moved that the 

application be approved, as per the Officer recommendation.  This was duly 
seconded by Councillor Carol Bull who concurred with Councillor Houlder’s 
statement. 

 
Prior to the vote being taking on the motion for approval Councillor David 

Nettleton requested a recorded vote and this was supported by five other 
Members, in line with the Committee’s Procedure Rules. 
 

Upon being put to the vote Members voted as follows: 
 

Name of Member For Against Abstained 

Carol Bull X   

John Burns  X  

Terry Clements   X  

Jason Crooks  X  

Robert Everitt X   

Paula Fox X   

Susan Glossop X   

Ian Houlder X   

Ivor Mclatchy X   

David Nettleton  X  

Alaric Pugh X   

Page 7



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

Name of Member For Against Abstained 

David Roach X   

Andrew Smith X   

Jim Thorndyke X   

Julia Wakelam  X  

TOTAL 10 5 0 

 
With 10 voting for the motion and 5 against, it was resolved that 
 

Decision 
 

Subject to the Secretary of State (upon consultation) confirming that he does 
not intend to call in the planning application for this own determination, 
planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun no later than 3 

years from the date of this permission.   
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 

complete accordance with the details shown on the approved plans and 

documents. 
3. Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, the new 

vehicular access shall be laid out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with Drawing No. 5121919-ATK-WSOH-PL-DR-C-7002 Rev 
P07.  Thereafter the access shall be retained in the specified form. 

4. Prior to the commencement of development details of site access to be 
used during the construction of the development hereby permitted 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The access shall thereafter be implemented in full in 

accordance with the approved details. 
5. Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, a signing 

strategy plan to provide details of signage to and from the site shall be 

submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The strategy 
shall thereafter be implemented in full in accordance with the approved 

details. 
6. No development shall commence on the path shown on drawing No. 

5121919-ATK-WSOH-PL-DR-C-7002 P07 until construction 

specifications have been submitted and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The path shall thereafter be provided in 

accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the 
development. 

7. All HGV traffic movements to and from the site over the duration of the 

construction period shall be subject to a Deliveries Management Plan 
which shall be submitted to the planning authority for approval a 

minimum of 28 days before any deliveries of materials commence. 
No HGV movements shall be permitted to and from the site other than 
in accordance with the routes defined in the Plan. 

The site operator shall maintain a register of complaints and record of 
actions taken to deal with such complaints at the site office as specified 

in the Plan throughout the period of occupation of the site. 
The Plan shall include details of a routing strategy to avoid non A roads 
until C735 from A134 and before and after highway and verge 

condition surveys on Fornham Road and Barton Hill. 
8. All Operational HGV traffic movements to and from the site shall be 

Page 8



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

subject to a Routing Management Plan which shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for approval a minimum of 28 days before first 

use of site. 
No HGV movements shall be permitted to and from the site other than 

in accordance with the routes defined in the Plan. 
The site operator shall maintain a register of complaints and record of 
actions taken to deal with such complaints at the site office as specified 

in the Plan throughout the period of occupation of the site. 
9. The use shall not commence until the areas within the site shown on 

5121919-ATK-WSOH-PL-DR-C-7002 Rev P07 for the purposes of 
loading, unloading, manoeuvring and parking of vehicles has been 
provided and thereafter that areas shall be retained and used for no 

other purposes. 
10. Before any access is first used visibility splays shall be provided in 

accordance with details to be previously approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and thereafter shall be retained in the 
approved form. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 2 Class A of the 

Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 
no obstruction over 0.6 metres high shall be erected, constructed, 

planted or permitted to grow within the areas of the visibility splays. 
11. Prior to the development hereby permitted being first brought into use, 

the Framework Travel Plan (dated August 2017) that was submitted to 
support the application must be implemented in full, thereafter, it shall 
be reviewed and revised on an annual basis, unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority.  An annual Travel Plan Review, 
to be undertaken in accordance with the approved Travel Plan must 

also be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written approval 
for a period of 5 years from the site being brought in to use. 

12. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted details of 

the areas to be provided for secure covered cycle storage for 
employees and details of changing facilities including storage lockers 

and showers shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall be carried out in its 
entirety before the development is brought into use and shall be 

retained thereafter and used for no other purpose. 
13. Prior to the first occupation, a completed Travel Information Pack shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and shall include up-to-date walking, cycling and bus maps, 
relevant bus and rail timetable information, car sharing information, 

and sustainable transport discounts. The Travel Information Pack shall 
be maintained and operated thereafter.  Within one month of first 

occupation, each employee shall be provided with Travel Information 
Pack that contains the sustainable transport information and measures 
that was identified in the Framework Travel Plan (dated August 2017).  

14. No development shall take place until a surface water drainage scheme 
for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an 

assessment of the hydrological and hydro geological context of the 
development, has been submitted to and approved ¡n writing by the 
local planning authority.  

The applicant shall submit a detailed design based on the submitted  
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy by Atkins Ltd and will 

demonstrate that surface water run-off generated up to and including 
the critical 100 year +CC storm will not exceed the run-off from the 

Page 9



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

existing site following the corresponding rainfall event. The scheme 
shall also include:- 

A) Details of further infiltration testing on site in accordance with 
BRE 365 to verify the permeability of the site (trial pits to be 

located where soakaways are proposed and repeated runs for 
each trial hole). The use of infiltration as the means of drainage 
will be taken forward only if the infiltration rates and 

groundwater levels show it to be possible. 
Borehole records should also be submitted in support of 

soakage testing. 
B) Additional groundwater monitoring is required across the site to 

verify the depth to the local water table. This should be 

included in support of additional soakage testing and 
undertaken where drainage features are to be located. 

C) Provided the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the 
infiltration rates the following shall be submitted: 

I. Applicant shall submit dimensioned plans illustrating 

all aspects of the surface water drainage scheme 
including location and size of soakaways and the 

conveyance network. A statement on the amount of 
impermeable area served by each soakaway should 

also be illustrated on the plans and should be cross 
referenceable with associated soakaway 
calculations. 

II. Modelling results (or similar method) to 
demonstrate that the soakaways have been 

adequately sized to contain the 30yr event for the 
catchment area they serve.  Each soakaway should 
be designed using the nearest tested infiltration 

rate to which they are located. A suitable factor of 
safety should be applied to the infiltration rate 

during design. 
III. Infiltration devices will only dispose of clean water 

due to the site area overlying a Source Protection 

Zone. Demonstration of adequate treatment stages 
for water quality control shall be submitted. 

IV. Infiltration devices should be no more than 2m 
deep and will have at least 1 - 1.2m of unsaturated 
ground between base of the device and the 

groundwater table. If individual soakaways are 
being used they will be at least 5m away from any 

foundation (depending on whether chalk is 
present). 

V. Soakaways will have a half drain time of less than 

24hours. 
VI. Any conveyance networks in the 1 in 30 event show 

no flooding above ground. 
VII. Details of any exceedance volumes during the 1 in 

100 year rainfall + CC and their routes should be 

submitted on the drainage plans. These flow paths 
will demonstrate that the risks to people and 

property are kept to a minimum. There shall be no 
offsite flows. 

Page 10



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 D) If the use of infiltration is not possible then modelling OR a 
 similar method shall be submitted to demonstrate that:- 

I. Surface water runoff will be discharged to a suitable 
receptor and restricted to the existing greenfield runoff 

rates for the site. 
II. Any attenuation features will contain the 1 in 100 year 

rainfall event including climate change 

III. Any pipe networks in the 1 in 30 event show no flooding 
above ground. 

IV. Modelling of the volumes of any above ground flooding 
during the 1 in 100 year rainfall + climate change to 
ensure no flooding to properties on or off-site. This should 

also include topographic maps showing where water will 
flow and/or be stored on site. 

E) A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development which shall include the arrangements for adoption 
by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other 

arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable 
drainage system throughout its lifetime. 

15. No development shall commence until details of a construction surface 
water management plan detailing how surface water and storm water 

will be managed on the site during construction is submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The construction 
surface water management plan shall be implemented and thereafter 

managed and maintained in accordance with the approved plan. 
16. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found 

to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out 
until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy detailing how 

this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained 
written approval from the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 

strategy shall be implemented as approved. 
17. No development, including any demolition, shall take place until a 

Construction Environment Management Plan has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved 
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The 

Statement shall include a pollution risk assessment and mitigation 
methods to be implemented, and provide for: 

 any requirements for dewatering excavations and how the 

resulting trade effluent will be managed to comply with the law 
and prevent pollution; 

 the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
 the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development; 

 wheel washing facilities; 
 measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction; and 
 a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works. 

Any changes to these components require the express written consent 
of the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as 

approved. 
18.  No development shall commence until the implementation of a 

Page 11



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

programme of archaeological work in accordance with a Written 
Scheme of Investigation which first shall have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The Written Scheme of Investigation shall include an assessment of 

significance and research questions; and: 
o The programme and methodology of site investigation and 

recording. 

o The programme for post investigation assessment.  
o Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and 

recording. 
o Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the 

analysis and records of the site investigation. 

o Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and 
records of the site investigation. 

o Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to 
undertake the works set out within the Written Scheme of 
Investigation. 

o The site investigation shall be completed prior to development, 
or in such other phased arrangement, as agreed and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
19.  No building shall be occupied until the site investigation and post 

investigation assessment has been completed, submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in accordance with 
the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation and the 

provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results 
and archive deposition. 

20.  Prior to the occupation of the development a scheme for the provision 
of fire hydrants within the application site have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the 

development shall be occupied or brought into use until the fire 
hydrants have been provided in accordance with the approved scheme. 

Thereafter the hydrants shall be retained in their approved form unless 
the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority is obtained for 
any variation. 

21. Prior to their first use in the development, details of proposed 
photovoltaic panels to be used shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall then be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

22.  The development hereby permitted shall be occupied in complete 

accordance with the Odour Management Plan (March 2017) version 5 
(document ref ATK-WSOH-PL-RP-EN-006). 

23. The site demolition, preparation and construction works shall be carried 
out between the hours of 08:00 to18:00 Mondays to Fridays and 
between the hours of 08:00 to 13:30 Saturdays and at no time on 

Sundays or Bank Holidays without the prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

24. Within a 12 month period a maximum of 106,496 tonnes waste and 
materials for recycling may be accepted at the Waste Transfer Station.  
The operator shall keep a record of all imported material which shall be 

made available to the Local Planning Authority upon request. 
25. Within a 12 month period a maximum of 607 tonnes of hazardous 

waste may be accepted at the application site.  The operator shall keep 
a record of all imported material which shall be made available to the 

Page 12



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

Local Planning Authority upon request. 
26. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted a 

scheme for the provision of 10 No electric vehicle charging points (to 
include 7 within the staff parking area, 2 within the fleet parking area 

and 1 within the visitor parking area) shall be submitted to an 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

27.  Prior to the commencement of development a Tree Protection Plan 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall thereafter be constructed in 

accordance with the approved plan. 
29. Prior to the implementation of the proposed landscaping to the 

northern boundary of the site, details of the mound profiles shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
30. The development shall not begin, including the removal of tree T1 

which lies to the north-east of the site (identified on Appendix 4 Tree 
Protection Plan of the submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment), 
until details of a replacement Oak tree in accordance with the 

submitted landscape plan (Dwg No 5121919-ATK-WSOH-PL-DR-L-7050 
P9) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  The use of the permitted development shall not 
commence until the replacement tree has been provided. 

31. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with section 7 ‘Mitigation’ of the submitted ecology report 
dated 2 February 2017 prepared by SWT Trading Ltd.   

32.  The facilities hereby permitted shall not operate outside of the 
following hours unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority: 
 Depot (operational hours only) 

• 06:00 – 20.00 (Monday – Friday) 

• 06:00 – 20:00 (Saturday – for street cleaning services, vehicle and 
equipment maintenance, trade waste activities and for domestic waste 

services immediately following bank holidays) 
• 06:00 – 20:00 (Sunday - for street cleaning services only) 
Household Waste Recycling Centre 

Public opening hours 
• 09:00 – 17:00 (Monday – Wednesday, Friday – Sunday) 

• 09:00 – 19:00 (Thursday) 
• Closed on Christmas Day and New Year’s Day 
Operational hours 

• 06:00 – 20:00 (7 days a week) 
• Closed on Christmas Day and New Year’s Day 

WTS (operational hours only) 
• 05:30 – 22:30 (7 days a week) 
• Closed on Christmas Day and New Year’s Day 

33.  All vehicles that are to be used on site that are fitted with reversing 
warning alarms are to be white noise alarms. 

34. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 7 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any 
Order amending, replacing or re-enacting that Order), no fixed plant or 

machinery, buildings or structures shall be erected, extended or altered 
at the site without prior permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

35.   Prior to the commencement of any development a scheme for the 
provision and implementation of foul water drainage shall be submitted 

Page 13



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
works/scheme shall be constructed and completed in accordance with 

the approved plans and/or specifications at such time(s) as may be 
specified in the approved scheme. 

36. Prior to the first use of the Waste Collection  Depot, the Household 
Waste Recycling Centre or the Waste Transfer Station, a strategy (or 
strategies) for the management, control and/or avoidance of vermin, 

birds and litter for that individual facility shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in writing. Thereafter, the facilities shall 

be operated fully in accordance with the approved strategy (or 
strategies). 

37. Prior to the construction of any individual building at the application 

site, a schedule of the colour finishes to be applied externally to the 
walls and roof of that building shall be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority for approval in writing. Thereafter the approved colour 
finishes shall be applied to the individual building before it is first 
brought into use. 

38. The development shall be carried out and operated fully in accordance 
with Sections 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of the Odour Management Plan, 

submitted with the planning application and forming part of the 
package of approved documents. 

 
Informatives: 
 

1) It is an OFFENCE to carry out works within the public highway, which 
includes a Public Right of Way, without the permission of the Highway 

Authority. 
Any conditions which involve work within the limits of the public 
highway do not give the applicant permission to carry them out. Unless 

otherwise agreed in writing all works within the public highway shall be 
carried out by the County Council or its agents at the applicant's 

expense. 
The County Council's West Area Manager must be contacted on Tel: 
01284 758868. For further information go to: 

https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/parking/apply-for-a-
dropped-kerb/ 

A fee is payable to the Highway Authority for the assessment and 
inspection of both new vehicular crossing access works and 
improvements deemed necessary to existing vehicular crossings due to 

proposed development. 
2) The works within the public highway will be required to be designed 

and constructed in accordance with the County Council's specification. 
The applicant will also be required to enter into a legal agreement 
under the provisions of Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 relating 

to the construction and subsequent adoption of the highway 
improvements. Amongst other things the Agreement will cover the 

specification of the highway works, safety audit procedures, 
construction and supervision and inspection of the works, bonding 
arrangements, indemnity of the County Council regarding noise 

insulation and land compensation claims, commuted sums, and 
changes to the existing street lighting and signing. 

3) Any works to a watercourse may require consent under section 23 of 
the Land Drainage Act 1991 

Page 14



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

4) Any discharge to a watercourse or groundwater needs to comply with 
the Water Environment (Water Framework Directive) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 2003 
5) The submitted scheme of archaeological investigation shall be in 

accordance with a brief procured beforehand by the developer from 
Suffolk County Council Archaeological Service, Conservation Team. 

6) In accordance with the 'National Planning Policy Framework' the 

Council confirms it has implemented the requirement to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive way.  In this case amendments 

and additional information were sought to address objections in 
relation to drainage and landscaping. 

 

 
The meeting concluded at 1.21 pm 

 
 

 

 

Signed by: 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 

Development 

Control Committee  
 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Development Control Committee held on 

Thursday 2 November 2017 at 2.00 pm at the Conference Chamber, 

West Suffolk House,  Western Way, Bury St Edmunds IP33 3YU 
 

 

Present: Councillors 
 

 Chairman Jim Thorndyke 
Vice Chairman Carol Bull and David Roach 

 
John Burns 
Terry Clements 

Jason Crooks 
Robert Everitt 

Paula Fox 
Susan Glossop 
 

Ian Houlder 
David Nettleton 

Alaric Pugh 
Andrew Smith 

Julia Wakelam 
 
 

By Invitation:  
Clive Pollington 

 

Ward Member for Wickhambrook 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peter Stevens and Ivor 

McLatchy.  
 

2. Substitutes  
 

No substitutes were declared at the meeting. 
 

3. Minutes  
 
The Chairman drew attention to the three sets of minutes attached to the 

agenda for Members’ consideration: 
 
7 September 2017 

 
The Lawyer clarified that the minutes had come back to the Committee for 

consideration because they had been amended to list a condition that had 
been omitted from the minutes of the same meeting that had been approved 
on 5 October 2017. 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 17



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2017 were then confirmed 
as a correct record and were signed by the Chairman. 

 
21 September 2017 

 
Councillor David Nettleton referred to the last sentence in paragraph (e) on 
page 13 of the minutes and requested that in order to accurately reflect the 

comment he made in the meeting, it be amended to read ‘..therefore, 
ensuring that the decision was made locally rather than being determined by 

the Planning Inspectorate’.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2017 were then confirmed 

as a correct record and were signed by the Chairman. 
 

5 October 2017 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2017 were confirmed as a 

correct record and were signed by the Chairman.    
 

4. Planning Application DC/17/1628/OUT - Land Adjacent to Aldersfield 
Place Farm, Ashfield Green, Wickhambrook  
 

Outline Planning Application (Means of Access to be considered) – 
1no. dwelling and detached garage. 
 

(Councillor Robert Everitt declared a non-pecuniary interest as he was known 
to the applicant but remained in the meeting for the consideration of this 

item). 
 
This application had been referred to the Development Control Committee 

following consideration of the Delegation Panel at the request of the local 
Ward Member and because the Officer recommendation for refusal was 

contrary to that of the Parish Council’s for approval.  
 
Outline planning permission was sought for the erection of a single dwelling 

with a detached garage. The means of access was to be considered and it was 
proposed that it would be created by cutting through the existing hedgerow. 

All other matters were reserved, and any other information that was 
submitted would be indicative only and would not be capable of being taken 
into account at that stage, except to indicate how it would be possible to 

develop the site.  
 

The Case Officer spoke on the history of the site and related planning 
applications. 
 

A Member site visit was held prior to the meeting.  
 

Speakers: Councillor Clive Pollington spoke as Ward Member for   
  Wickhambrook in support of the application 

  Mrs Parker (applicant) spoke in support of the application 
 
Members queried the current use for the land and potential conditions that 

could be imposed to prevent the applicant from potentially over-developing 

Page 18



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

the site if planning permission was granted. The Case Officer responded and 
clarified that the land was currently classified in planning terms as 

countryside outside the Housing Settlement Boundary and the current use 
was that of a garden/ paddock.  

 
Councillor Alaric Pugh was of the opinion that whilst consideration should be 
given to similar applications that had been dismissed on appeal, this 

application was to be judged on its own merit and that it was in keeping with 
the spirit of policy DM27, which related to building housing in the countryside.  

He recognised that Wickhambrook had a specific set of characteristics 
comprising several hamlets and therefore was not setting a precedent for 
future decision making on similar applications of this kind.  The site was 

located in a sustainable location and would be infilling a small undeveloped 
plot by one dwelling that would be of a similar scale and character to that of 

existing dwellings and therefore he would be minded to approve the 
application. The Service Manager (Planning Development) responded to 
Councillor Pugh’s comments and explained that taking the characteristics of 

the settlements that comprised Wickhambrook into account, the benefits of 
the proposal could be adequate enough to outweigh the conflict with the 

Development Plan. She explained that policy DM27 was a relatively new 
policy that was open to interpretation and considered that the spirit of this 

policy could be applied in this case, and the addition of one dwelling in a 
sustainable location to the Borough’s housing stock and five year land supply 
could justify approval of the application in this specific case.  

 
The majority of Members supported these comments and also acknowledged 

the Ward Member’s and Parish Council’s support for the application. 
 
During further discussion Members raised concerns relating to the current 

drainage system which was considered not to be fit for purpose; whether, if 
approved, a condition should be imposed regarding ensuring the dwelling be 

restricted to being single storey only as per the application submitted; as well 
as the potential for further development on this site or in the locality. The 
Case Officer confirmed that conditions could be listed that would require the 

current drainage system to be reviewed and that the development should be 
for a single storey dwelling only. The Service Manager explained that it could 

not be agreed in principle to refuse any further developments in the area and 
reiterated that if any such applications were to come to the Committee they 
would have to be considered on their own merit and not in comparison to any 

decisions made on previous applications. 
 

The Case Officer read out draft conditions which could be used if Members 
were minded to approve the application: 

1. Submission of reserved matters with means of access to be considered 

2. Standard time limit 
3. Standard highways  

4. Scheme of drainage 
5. Hours of construction 
6. Single storey build 

7. Details of landscaping and retention of existing boundaries 
 

Councillor David Nettleton proposed that the application be approved, and 
this was duly seconded by Councillor Alaric Pugh. 

Page 19



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 
Upon being put to the vote and with 13 voting for the motion and 1 against, it 

was resolved that 
 

Decision 
 
Planning permission be GRANTED, contrary to the Officer recommendation, 

for the following reasons: 
 

 Taking the characteristics of the settlements that comprised 
Wickhambrook into account and the benefits of the proposal are 
adequate enough to outweigh any potential harm caused by a 

departure from the Development Plan in this particular case.   
 The application accorded with the spirit of policy DM27. 

 The addition of one dwelling in this sustainable location to the 
Borough’s housing stock and five year land supply. 

 

And subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Submission of reserved matters with means of access to be considered 
 

2. Standard time limit 
 

3. Standard highways  

 
4. Scheme of drainage 

 
5. Hours of construction 

 

6. Single storey build 
 

7. Details of landscaping and retention of existing boundaries 
 
(Councillor Pollington left the meeting at the conclusion of this item.) 

 

5. Planning Application DC/17/1588/HH - 59 Millfield Road, 
Barningham  

 
Householder Planning Application – conversion of bungalow to two 
storey dwelling including single storey rear extension and part two 

storey / part single storey front extension. 
 

This application was referred to the Development Control Committee following 
consideration of the Delegation Panel at the request of the local Ward Member 
and because the Parish Council objected to the application which was contrary 

to the Officer recommendation of approval. 
 

Planning permission was sought for the conversion of a bungalow to a two 
storey dwelling which included a single storey rear extension and a part two 

storey / part single storey front extension. The proposal would create three 
first floor bedrooms, a bathroom and a study / bedroom four. The rear 
section of the existing integral garage would be converted into living 

accommodation with a new attached garage created in the front extension.  

Page 20



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 
The application which, as originally submitted, proposed a larger first floor 

extension with both a two storey rear extension and a two storey front 
extension however this had been amended to set the first floor back in line 

with the existing rear wall which would therefore reduce the first floor bulk. 
This would have enabled the ridge height to be lowered from 7.595 metres to 
6.990 metres. The applicant had also amended the original plan to set back 

the first floor over the garage which would improve the aesthetics of the front 
elevation and reduce the first floor bulk.  

 
A Member site visit was held prior to the meeting. Representations had been 
received from neighbouring properties within the cul-de-sac citing objections 

as listed in paragraph 9 of the report.  
 

Speakers: Councillor Carol Bull spoke on the application as    
  Ward Member for Barningham. 
 

During discussion some Members stated that they would be apprehensive to 
approve an application that would reduce the number of bungalows in the 

Borough as there was already a shortage of that type of housing, however 
they did acknowledge that this was not a material planning consideration and 

therefore was not a reason to refuse the application. 
 
Members commended the applicant for working cooperatively with the 

Planning department, particularly in relation to making improvements to the 
basic design. In addition, Members considered the concerns of the 

neighbouring residents and concluded that any potential overshadowing was 
insignificant; the amended design had mitigated against the development 
from potentially being overbearing; and the character of the area and street 

scene was felt to be enhanced as a result of the conversion.  
 

Councillor David Nettleton proposed that the application be approved as per 
the Officer recommendation and this was duly seconded by Councillor Ian 
Houlder. 

 
Upon being put to the vote with 9 voting for the motion and 3 against, it was 

resolved that 
 
Decision 

 
Planning permission be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than 3 
years from the date of permission 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the following approved 

plans and documents: 
Reference No:  Plan Type   Date Received 

 2017-12-BD32  Location and Block Plan 08.09.2017 

 2017-12-BD31  Ex and Prop Elevations 08.09.2017 
     and Floor Plans 

  

Page 21



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

3. Occupation of the extension hereby permitted shall not commence until 
the area(s) within the site shown on drawing no. 2017-12-BD32 for the 

purposes of loading, unloading, manoeuvring and parking of vehicles 
has been provided. Thereafter the area(s) shall be retained and used 

for no other purpose. 
 

4. Demolition or construction works shall not take place outside 07:30 

hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and 07:30 hours to 13:00 
hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

 
 

6. Planning Application DC/17/1867/HH - Anvil Cottage, Maltings Lane, 

Ingham  
 
Householder Planning Application – Single storey rear extension and 

two storey side extension. 
 

The application was referred to the Development Control Committee in 
accordance with the authorities’ constitution as the applicant was an 
employee.  

 
Planning permission was sought for a single storey rear extension and two 

storey side extension. The single storey rear extension would have a footprint 
of 3.9 metres x 3.6 metres with a height to the eaves of 2.5 metres and 4.2 
metres to the highest point comprised of a roof lantern. The two storey side 

extension would have a footprint of 7.6 metres x 2.3 metres with a height to 
the eaves of 4.9 metres and 8 metres to the ridgeline of the pitched roof. 

 
Representations had been received from two neighbouring properties citing 
objections as detailed in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the report. 

 
Speakers: Councillor Susan Glossop spoke on the application as    

  Ward Member for Risby.  
 
Members’ queried why a condition had been listed that required the applicant 

to install obscure glazed and fixed shut windows on the proposed first storey 
of the two storey rear elevation when the proposal was not considered to 

encroach upon neighbouring properties to the rear. The Planning Officer 
explained that the applicant had originally submitted plans for a blank gable 
end and the obscure glazed fixed shut windows had been added for 

architectural design purposes only. The Service Manager (Planning 
Development) clarified that the distance between the rear of the proposed 

extension and shared boundary line of the site and neighbouring properties 
would be considered acceptable in relation to causing no harm to the amenity 
of residents and therefore obscure glazed and fixed shut windows would not 

normally be required. 
 

Councillor John Burns proposed that the application be approved, as per the 
Officer recommendation, which was duly seconded by Councillor Alaric Pugh. 

Councillor David Nettleton then moved an amendment to remove proposed 
condition 4 of the recommendation, which required the applicant to install 
obscure glazed and fixed shut windows as this was not considered necessary. 

Page 22



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

This was duly seconded by Councillor Alaric Pugh. Councillor John Burns, as 
the proposer of the original substantive motion accepted this amendment. 

 
Upon being put to the vote and with 13 voting for the motion, none against 

and 1 abstention, it was resolved that 
 
Decision 

 
Planning permission be APPROVED subject to the following conditions 

summarised below: 
 

1. 01A Time Limit Detailed 

 
2. 14FP Approved Plans 

 
3. NS Materials Detailed on Application Form 

 

7. Planning Application DC/17/1576/HH - Walnut Brook, Withersfield 
Road, Haverhill  
 

Householder Planning Application – Detached outbuilding on concrete 
base. 

 
(Councillor Terry Clements declared a pecuniary interest in this application as 
he was a close acquaintance of the applicant. He left the meeting for the 

duration of the item and did not return).  
 

This application was referred to the Development Control Committee as the 
applicant was an Elected Member of the Borough Council. 
 

The application sought planning permission for the construction of a detached 
outbuilding on a concrete base. The proposed outbuilding would be of a 

wooden log style construction with a tiled asphalt roof and would measure 6 
metres wide, 6 metres deep, 1.96 metres to the eaves and 2.7 metres to the 
ridge.  

 
Councillor John Burns proposed that the application be approved, as per the 

Officer recommendation, and this was duly seconded by Councillor David 
Roach. 
 

Upon being put to the vote and with the vote being unanimous, it was 
resolved that 

 
Decision 
 

Planning permission be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun no later than three 
years from the date of permission. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 

complete accordance with the details shown on the approved plans and 

documents. 

Page 23



DEV.SE.02.11.2017 

 
 

The Meeting concluded at 3.31 pm 
 

 

 

 

Signed by: 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 
 

 

Development Control Committee 

7 December 2017 
 

 

Planning Application DC/17/1765/RM –  

Western Part of the Suffolk Business Park 

Extension, Bury St Edmunds 
 
Date 

Registered: 

 

25.08.2017 Expiry Date:  24.11.2017 

Case 

Officer: 

 Peter White Recommendation:   Approve 

Parish: 

 

Rushbrooke 

with Rougham 

Ward:  Rougham 

Proposal: Reserved Matters Application - Submission of details under 
DC/16/2825/OUT - the means of appearance, layout, scale and 

landscaping for 2no. industrial/logistics buildings (B8 with ancillary 
B1a offices), together with associated car parking, service yard and 

landscaping as amended by plans and details received  
  

Site: Western Part Of The Suffolk Business Park Extension 

Bury St Edmunds 

 
Applicant: Jaynic Suffolk Park 

 

Synopsis: 

Application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the (Listed Building 

and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Associated matters. 

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that the Committee approve the submitted reserved matter 

application. 

 

CONTACT CASE OFFICER: 
Peter White 

Email: peter.white@westsuffolk.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01284 757357 

 

 
DEV/SE/17/046 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



Background: 

 
This application is referred to the Development Control Committee 
because the Council has a financial interest in the land. 

 
Proposal: 

 
1. Reserved matter application seeks consent for layout, scale and 

Appearance and on plot landscaping. The application seeks consent for 
two large storage and distribution (B8) uses that would have ancillary B1 
offices to serve the principle B8 use, with car parking, cycle storage, yard 

space and HGV vehicle parking, turning and unloading areas.  
 

2. The smaller of the two building is described as SP150 and seeks consent 
for 13252m2 of internal floor area for the principle storage and 
distribution use. The building would also have 365m2 of office space that 

would serve the principle B8 use. This building would be 160 metres long 
by 85 metres wide. The height of the building would 16 metres.  

 
3. The larger of the two buildings is described as SP205 and seeks consent 

for 18648m2 of internal floor area for the principle storage and 

distribution use. The building would also have 474m2 of office space that 
would serve the principle B8 use. This building would be 170 metres by 

115 metres. The height of the building would 16 metres.  
 

4. The two proposed units would operate in isolation from each other and 

would be served by separate accesses which were approved as part of the 
new internal road (which is currently under construction) which serve this 

part of the business park. Each unit would have an entrance for the main 
car park, pedestrian access and a separate entrance for HGV vehicles. 

 

5. The application has been amended since submission in the following ways; 
 Amount of electric charging points has been increased 

 Landscaping and parking layout at the front of the building 
 Further details on surface finishes on the site 
 Further ecology information 

 BREAAM statement 
 Increasing the red line on the eastern boundary to include the 

landscaping that was shown on the original submission.  
 

The applicant originally submitted details of the internal layouts of each 

building. These have subsequently been withdrawn as the developer 
would prefer to agree the internal layout with the LPA ahead of the 

buildings first being brought into operation as this will allow for the 
operators who lease or buy the buildings to have an input into the layout 

of the building to insure that it works best for them from an operational 
perspective. Lastly the most significant amendment to the application 
since it was originally submitted was that the application sought consent 

for either a B8 (Storage and distribution use or a B1c (Light Industrial) 
use. The B1c element has now been removed and the proposal is only for 

a B8 use.  
 

Page 26



 

Application Supporting Material: 

 
6. Information submitted with the application as follows: 

 Application form 
 Planning statement 

 Application Drawings 
 Detail Planting Plan 

 Design and Access statement 

 

Site Details: 

 

7. The site is situated north of the A14, east of the existing built Suffolk 
Business Park, and south of the newly opened Sybil Andrews Academy. 
The site is also south of the Eastern Relief Road (which will be called 

Rougham Tower Avenue when complete) which was recently opened.  
 

8. The site is currently an agricultural field which has parts of the old 
perimeter track that served the Rougham Airfield. The outline that this 
Reserved Matter application follows on from gained consent for a new 

internal road which will serve this proposal.  
 

9. Currently an unadopted road which many refer to as Lady Miriam Way 
South is to the west of the site. This road is currently used by businesses 
such as Sealy on the existing Suffolk Business Park. The road has some 

pedestrian infrastructure and lighting columns. The pedestrian and cycle 
provision agreed for this road is currently being implemented.  

 
10.On the southern boundary of the site there is large bund with trees 

planted on it. This bund was created using top soil dug up to build housing 

in the Moreton Hall area in the mid 1990s. The retention of this bund and 
the trees on it was agreed at the outline stage.  

 
Planning History: 

 

11.In April this year Outline Planning Permission was granted (under 
application DC/16/2825/OUT) for the whole of western half of the Suffolk 

Business Park Extension. The consent confirmed B1 (office, light industrial 
and research use) and B8 (storage and distribution) uses on this site 

subject to a separate application to gain reserved matter consent for 
Layout, Scale, on plot Landscaping and Appearance for individual plots.    

 

Consultations: 

 
12.Highway Authority: No objection, the parking is a slight overprovision on 

both sites but this is considered a minor point and acceptable given the 

area of Moreton Hall and the previous problems that have arisen 
historically when development has had an under provision.   

 
13.Highways England: No Objection 

 

Page 27



 
14.Environment Team: No objection, satisfied that the electrical charging 

points are sufficient.   
 

15.Ecology and Landscape Officer: No objection to the scheme but 
recommends various conditions to secure landscaping and ecology 
mitigation and enhancements  

 
16.Suffolk County Council Flood and Surface Water Engineer: At the point of 

drafting the report a formal response had not been received from Flood 
and Surface Water Officer. A verbal update will be given at the meeting.  

 

Representations: 

 
17.Rushbrooke with Rougham Parish Council: Having considered the 

reconsultation, members are happy to support this Planning Application. 
 

18.Bury St Edmunds Town Council: No objection based on the information 

received.  
 

Policy: The following policies of the Joint Development Management Policies 
Document, the Bury St Edmunds Vision 2031 Document and the St 
Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010 have been taken into account in 

the consideration of this application: 
 

19.Joint Development Management Policies Document: 
 Policy DM1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 Policy DM2: Creating Places – Development Principles and Local 

Distinctiveness 
 Policy DM3: Masterplans 

 Policy DM6: Flooding and Sustainable Drainage 
 Policy DM7: Sustainable Design and Construction 
 Policy DM10: Impact of Development on Sites of Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity Importance 
 Policy DM11: Protected Species 

 Policy DM12: Mitigation, Enhancement, Management and Monitoring of 
Biodiversity 

 Policy DM13: Landscape Features 

 Policy DM14: Protecting and Enhancing Natural Resources, Minimising 
Pollution and Safeguarding from Hazards 

 Policy DM15: Listed Buildings 
 Policy DM20: Archaeology 
 Policy DM35: Proposals for Main Town Centres Uses# 

 Policy DM44: Rights of Way 
 Policy DM45: Transport Assessment and Travel Plans 

 Policy DM46: Parking Standards 
 

20.St Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010 

 Policy BV1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 Policy BV13: Strategic Site – Extension to Suffolk Business Park, 

Moreton Hall, Bury St Edmunds 

Page 28



 Policy BV26: Green Infrastructure in Bury St Edmunds 
 

21.St Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010 
 Policy CS1 – St Edmundsbury Spatial Strategy 

 Policy CS2 – Sustainable Development 
 Policy CS3 – Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 Policy CS7 – Sustainable Transport 

 Policy CS8 – Strategic Transport Improvements 
 Policy CS9 – Employment and the Local Economy 

 Policy CS10: Retail, Leisure, Cultural and Office Provision 
 Policy CS14 – Community Infrastructure Capacity and Tariffs 

 

Other Planning Policy: 
 

22. National Planning Policy Framework  
23. National Planning Practice Guidance  
24. Concept Statement Suffolk Business Park Extension Adopted October 

2007 
25. Suffolk Business Park Extension Masterplan Adopted June 2010 

26.St Edmundsbury Green Infrastructure Strategy Dated September 2009 
 

Officer Comment: 

 
27.The issues to be considered in the determination of the application are: 

 
 Principle of development  

 Landscape and Ecology 
 Design and Appearance 
 Parking numbers and sustainable transport  

 Other matters  
 

Principle of Development 
 

28.The Principle of development was approved when application 
DC/16/2825/OUT was approved. That application established a B8 use 
was acceptable on this site and this reserved matter application follows on 

from that approved Outline permission.  
 

Landscape and Ecology 
 

29.Structural Landscaping was approved for the overall site at the outline 

stage. For these two proposed buildings the most important boundary is 
the southern boundary. This is the boundary will form the buffer between 

the A14 and the site and will be where the majority of the public would 
potentially experience any harm (overbearing or dominating) that the 
buildings would cause in landscape terms. The proposed buildings are 16 

metres in height and are proposed in a location that the outline consent 
established could accommodate buildings of up to 20 metres in height. 

Buildings of up to 20 metres in height were considered acceptable 
because the developer kept the existing 30 metre landscape buffer which 
is on some of the southern boundary and proposed to continue that buffer 

Page 29



along the rest of the southern boundary. Officers are therefore satisfied 
that this element of the scheme is acceptable.  

 
30.The next important elevation for consideration is the front of the 

buildings. Commercial storage and distribution buildings are of a scale, 
such as the ones as proposed so that they are commercially viable and 
benefit from economies of scale. However that does not mean that design 

is disregarded and that design features or articulation cannot be viably 
integrated into buildings to ensure that they are appropriate in a high 

quality, well landscaped business park. The space for landscaping at the 
front of the buildings has been enlarged to give over more space to 
landscaping so that larger trees can be planted that will help soften and 

frame the buildings.  This is especially the case for the larger building 
SP205.  

 
31.Given the above it is considered by officers that the scheme as proposed 

is acceptable and that sufficient landscaping will be delivered to help 

mitigate the bulk and size of the buildings, along with the design features 
which are discussed further below, and allow them to sit comfortably in 

the business park.  
 

32.Amended and additional ecology details have been submitted. Officers are 
satisfied that these deliver proportionate ecology mitigation and 
enhancements in keeping with the outline consent. This matter is 

therefore considered acceptable.  
 

Design and Appearance 
 

33.The design and appearance of such proposals needs careful consideration 

so that the buildings are not simply viewed as large big boxes in their 
locality. The outline application set out a range of design features which 

the council would expect to see buildings of this size include on prominent 
elevations to help lessen their impact and enhance the quality of the built 
environment of the business park. This would help ensure that the 

aspiration of the park as a high quality business park is realised.  
 

34.In this instance the proposal seeks to deliver two large glazed elements 
on the northwest corner of each building. This creates a large feature 
which helps create interest and articulation and draws the eye to these 

areas. Each building is then further complemented on the front (north) 
elevation by horizontal glazing that would serve the office elements of the 

building. 
 
35.It is considered that whilst the buildings are large the location of the 

buildings, the design and articulation and the landscape belts and clumps 
will ensure that the buildings sit comfortably in the park.  

 
Parking Numbers and sustainable transport 

 

36.The larger building would be served by 146 car parking spaces. The 
building would have 18648m2 of B8 floor space and 474m2 of B1 office 

floor space. The Suffolk County Council Parking standards therefore allow 

Page 30



for a maximum of 124 spaces for the B8 use and 16 spaces for B1 use 
which totals 140 spaces. The smaller unit would be served by 105 car 

parking spaces. The building would have 13252m2 of B8 floor space and 
365m2 of B1 office floor space. The Suffolk County Council Parking 

standards therefore allow for a maximum of 88 spaces for the B8 use and 
12 spaces for B1 use which totals 100 spaces. Whilst there would be 11 
car parking spaces more than the standards allow this is a small (less 

than 5%) increase in the maximum allowable amount of car parking and 
is not considered material. The acceptability of this overprovision is given 

further weight because the two plots will have the practical facilities like 
lockers, changing rooms, showers and bicycle parking to allow those staff, 
who can walk and cycle to the site, to do so.  

 
Other matters 

 
37.Both units are greater than 1000m2 and so should therefore be brought 

forward as BREEAM Excellent in accordance with Policy DM7. The applicant 
has set out that owing to the speculative nature of the proposal this is 
made the achievement of Excellent unrealistic alongside other factors 

outside of their control and as such have set out they would carry out the 
scheme to a Very Good standard (one step below Excellent). This does 

weight against the scheme, but given the ecological benefits, the 
significant economic benefits both during the construction and operation 
phase and the sustainable transport facilities that will be delivered officers 

are entirely satisfied that this dis-benefit does not outweigh the overall 
benefits.  

 
Conclusion: 

 
38.Officers are content that the application is acceptable in Scale, Layout and 

Appearance terms. The scheme also provides appropriate on plot 

landscaping. This application accords with the details which were 
approved at outline and is very much a scheme that was expected to be 

delivered on this part of the park. Further details will need to be 
submitted to discharge conditions for each plot but the application is 
considered acceptable in the terms of a reserved matter application.   

 
Recommendation: 

 
39.It is recommended that this reserved matters application be APPROVED 

subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. List of approved plans 

2. Building SP205 to be limited to a gross floor area of 19,122m2 
3. Building SP150 to be limited to a gross floor area of 13,617m2  

4. Details of the internal layout for building SP205 to be submitted and 
approved in writing by the LPA before the building is first brought into 
operation. The approved details shall be implemented. 

5. Details of the internal layout for building SP150 to be submitted and 
approved in writing by the LPA before the building is first brought into 

operation. The approved details shall be implemented. 

Page 31



6. No storage of materials or waste shall occur on land north of the front 
elevation (car park) of either building hereby approved unless otherwise 

agreed in writing with the LPA. 
7. Details of the finished floor level of the yard area, including the gradients 

for the docking areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
LPA before building SP205 is first brought into operation. The approved 
details shall be implemented.  

8. Details of the finished floor level of the yard area including the gradients 
for the docking areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

LPA before building SP150 is first brought into operation. The approved 
details shall be implemented. 

9. Details of all fences, gates and walls as shown on the submitted details 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA before building 
SP205 is first brought into operation. The agreed details shall be 

implemented.  
10.Details of all fences, gates and walls as shown on the submitted details 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA before building 

SP150 is first brought into operation. The agreed details shall be 
implemented.  

11.Prior to either building being first brought into use details of two cycle 
stands that will serve each unit hereby approved (4 in total) that will be 

available to visitors shall be submitted to and approved in writing. The 
agreed details shall be implemented before the building they will serve is 
first brought into use.  

12.Details of the external materials to be used on building SP150 shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA prior to development 

commencing on site. The approved details shall be implemented.  
13.Details of the external materials to be used on building SP205 shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA prior to development 

commencing on site. The approved details shall be implemented. 
14.A certificate of demonstrating that building SP150 has gained a BREAAM 

Very good status to be submitted.  
15.A certificate of demonstrating that building SP205 has gained a BREAAM 

Very good status to be submitted.  

16.Landscape details hereby approved to be implemented within the first 
planting season after building SP205 is first brought into use.  

17.Landscape details hereby approved to be implemented within the first 
planting season after building SP150 is first brought into use.  

18.The hereby approved tree protection fencing shall be implemented prior to 

construction starting on either building hereby approved or at such time 
that shall be previously approved in writing with the LPA.  

19.The measures detailed in section 4 of the Biodiversity Survey, James 
Blake Nov 2017, JBA16_181 ECO 13, shall be implemented in their 
entirety. 

20.The aftercare and management plan, which includes management 
prescription for the landscaping shall be implemented.  

21.Parking, manoeuvring and unloading areas to be made available for 
building SP205 before the building is first brought into use.  

22.Parking, manoeuvring and unloading areas to be made available for 

building SP150 before the building is first brought into use.  
 

 

Page 32



Documents:  

All background documents including application forms, drawings and other 
supporting documentation relating to this application can be viewed online.  
 

 
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OV89MZPDIVC

00 

Page 33

https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OV89MZPDIVC00
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OV89MZPDIVC00
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OV89MZPDIVC00


This page is intentionally left blank



DC/17/1765/RM   Plots SP205 And SP150,  Western Part Of The Suffolk Business Park Extension, Bury St Edmunds/Rougham 

 

 

 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

Development Control Committee 
7 December 2017 

 

Planning Application DC/17/1047/OUT – 

Former Howard Community Primary School, St 

Olaves Road, Bury St Edmunds 

 
Date 
Registered: 

 

08.06.2017 Expiry Date: 07.09.2017 (EOT 
until 15.12.2017) 

Case 
Officer: 

 

Gary Hancox Recommendation: Approve Application 

Parish: 

 

Bury St Edmunds  

 
 

Ward: St. Olaves 

Proposal: Outline Planning Application (Means of Access to be considered) - 

Redevelopment of site to provide up to a maximum 79 no. 
residential units (Class C3) and a new community centre also 

incorporating a replacement Carousel Children's Centre (Class D1) 
with associated parking, open space, landscaping and 
infrastructure 

 
Site: Former Howard Community Primary School, St Olaves Road, Bury 

St Edmunds 
 

Applicant: Mr Colin Ross 

 
Synopsis: 

Application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Associated matters. 
 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Committee determine the attached application and 

associated matters. 
 
CONTACT CASE OFFICER: 

Gary Hancox 
Email:   gary.hancox@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01638 719258 

 
DEV/SE/17/047 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



Background: 
 
The application is referred to the Development Control Committee as one 

of the applicants is St Edmundsbury Borough Council (SEBC) who are the 
owners of part of the site. 

 
The application site includes the former Howard Community Primary 
School, and the Newbury Community Centre. The school was closed in 

August 2016 as part of the wider implementation of Suffolk County 
Council’s School Organisation Review and the move to a more 

sustainable two-tier system of primary and secondary school education. 
The school is now surplus to education requirements with the children 
having been transferred to the larger Howard Middle School site. The 

site has now been earmarked by Suffolk County Council for residential 
development that would help forward-fund the implementation of other 

essential education projects in the County and improving the quality of 
infrastructure and meeting an increased demand for places. 
 

The Newbury Community Association has had a longstanding objective 
to rebuild the adjoining Newbury Community Centre to overcome the 

widely acknowledged deficiencies of the existing building and provide a 
range of flexible meeting spaces better suited to meeting current 
demand and enabling a greater range of activities and services to be 

offered. 
 

Both the County Council and SEBC feel that there is great merit in 
bringing forward both schemes in parallel and as part of a 
comprehensive development approach based on a combined site. The 

Newbury Community Association (NCA) support this approach and 
positive discussions have been held with the key stakeholders the wider 

local community in this respect. 
 
Proposal: 

 
1. The application is in outline (means of access to be considered) and 

proposes redevelopment of the site to provide up to a maximum 79 
residential units and replacement community centre and ‘Carousel 

Children’s Centre’ along with associated parking, open space, landscaping 
and infrastructure. It is agreed that 30% of the dwellings would be 
affordable. Matters of detail (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 

are reserved. The following key elements also form part of the scheme: 
 

 Adaptation of existing vehicular means of access to community centre to 
serve the housing area configured on the west part of the site 

 Adaptation of existing vehicular means of access serving the former school 

to provide an internal estate road with new exit/egress point formed on St. 
Olaves Road to the east 

 Pedestrian linkages to facilitate wider permeability and connectivity to the 
wider pedestrian network 

 Replacement tree planting to complement the retained/enhanced 

landscape regime and to provide a soft edge to St. Olaves Road. 
 

2. The application has been amended increasing the maximum quantum of 
development from 70 dwellings to 79 dwellings. This followed an 
assessment of viability demonstrating that the scheme could afford 30% 

Page 40



on-site affordable housing taking into account the requirement to deliver a 
new community centre building along with other S106 planning obligation 
requirements. 

 
Application Supporting Material: 

 
3. The application is accompanied by the following plans and documents: 

 

 Planning Statement  
 Design and Access Statements 

 Transport Statement 
 Archaeological Desk-based Assessment 
 Preliminary Ecological Assessment 

 Elevated Survey & Tree Inspection Report 
 Preliminary Land Contamination and Geotechnical Risk Assessment 

 Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
 Flood Risk Assessment & Surface Water Drainage Assessment 
 Foul Water Drainage Statement 

 Statement of Community Involvement 
 Financial Viability Assessment 

 
Site Details: 
 

4. The application site extends to some 2.8 hectares and includes buildings 
relating to the Howard Community Primary School, Carousel Children’s 

Centre and Newbury Community Centre. The site is situated in a 
predominantly residential area to the south of St. Olaves Road and east of 
the former school playing field on Beetons Way (Eagle Walk) and St 

Olaves Road, and south of the adjoining public park. A small shopping 
precinct is located to the north west of the site. The site is located outside 

the Bury St Edmunds Conservation Area and within the defined settlement 
boundary. 

 

Planning History: 
 
Reference Proposal Status Decision Date 
 

SE/13/0438/CR3 Regulation 3 Application - 

Installation of (i) 1.2m 
high bow top railing 

(following removal of 
existing fence); (ii) Infill 

panel to fit aperture 
between school wall & bin; 
(iii) Manually operated 

swing gates. 

Recommend 

Approval to 
SCC 

22.04.2013 

 

DC/15/0841/CR3 Regulation 3 Planning 
Application (application on 
behalf of Suffolk County 

Council) - Installation of 
double temporary unit 

Application 
Granted 

03.06.2015 

 

    
 

SE/08/0624 Regulation 3 Application - 
Erection of single storey 

flat roof extension to front 

Application 
Granted 

17.06.2008 

Page 41



to create new entrance 
 

SE/07/1074 Regulation 3 Application - 

Change of use from 
caretakers bungalow to 

form children’s centre and 
erection of single storey 
extensions to front and 

rear. 

Recommend 

Approval to 
SCC 

30.07.2007 

 

E/92/1468/P Regulation 4 Application - 
Stationing of temporary 

classroom  unit 

Recommend 
Approval to 

SCC 

02.04.1992 

 

E/77/1839/P NURSERY UNIT Application 

Granted 

14.06.1977 

 

 
5. Consultations: 

  
Town Council - SUPPORTS this application on the grounds that it is a good 
development of the site and notes that local residents will benefit from it. 

 
SCC Highways – No objection, subject to conditions. 

 
Highways England – No objection.  
   

SCC Flood and Water Team – No objection, subject to conditions.  
 

Anglian Water – None received. 
 
Environment Agency – No comments. 

 
Environment Team – No objection, subject to conditions covering land 

contamination and air quality. 
 

Public Health and Housing – No objection. 
   
Planning Obligations Manager SCC – The following planning obligations are 

requested: 
 

Education 
 

6. SCC would anticipate the following minimum pupil yields from a 

development of 79 dwellings, namely: 
a. Primary school age range, 5-11: 16 pupils. Cost per place is £12,181 

(2017/18 costs). 
b. Secondary school age range, 11-16: 11 pupils. Cost per place is 
£18,355 (2017/18 costs). 

c. Secondary school age range, 16+: 2 pupils. Costs per place is £19,907 
(2017/18 costs). 

 
7. The local catchment schools are Howard County Primary School and King 

Edward CEVC Upper School. Both schools are forecast to have no surplus 

places available to accommodate any of the pupils arising from the 
proposed development. On this basis SCC requests £436,615 (2017/18 

costs). 
 

Page 42



Pre-school provision 
 

8. From these development proposals SCC would anticipate up to 8 pre-

school children arising at a cost of £6,091 per place. This development 
would be in the St Olaves Ward where there are the following early years 

providers: childminders x 5, Howard Primary and Little Acorns Childcare. 
From September 2017, it is predicted that there will be a deficit of 50 
places. On this basis SCC requests 8 places @ £6,091 per place = 

£48,728. 
 

Libraries 
 

9. Each house is expected to generate the need for 2.8 library items per 

annum (Suffolk standard level of stock per 1000 population is 1,174, 
CIPFA Library Survey 2015). The average cost of library stock in Suffolk is 

£5.66 per item. This includes books and physical non-book items, like 
spoken word and music CDs, and DVDs, as well as daily newspapers and 
periodicals. This gives a cost per dwelling of 2.8 items x £5.66 = £16 per 

dwelling. This scheme would therefore support a contribution of 79 
dwellings x £16 per dwelling = £1,264. This will be spent on providing 

additional items of lending stock plus reference, audio visual and 
homework support materials to mitigate the impacts of the proposed 
development on the local library service. As the contribution does not 

relate to infrastructure it is outside of the CIL Regulation 123(3) pooling 
restriction. 

   
10.Parks Development Manager - The proposed development at this location 

will generate additional demand at the existing play area and provision 

should be included to provide additional items of play to accommodate this 
demand. 

 
11.Strategy and Enabling Officer, Housing  - No objection.  

 

12.Ecology and Landscape Officer – None received. 
 

13.Natural England – None received. 
 

14.NHS England – No objection.   
 

15.Police Architectural Liaison Officer – None received.  

 
16.Ramblers Association – None received.  

 
17.County Archaeologist – No objection, subject to a condition requiring the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with 

a written scheme of investigation.    
 

18.Rights Of Way Support Officer SCC – No objection, however question 
whether FP2 running along the boundary of the site will retain its Public 
Footpath status. (The applicant has confirmed that this is the case.) 

Additional comments have been received requesting the upgrading of FP2. 
 

19.Sport England – No objection, subject to a contribution of £40, 000 
towards qualitative improvements to the existing playing fields in the 

Page 43



locality; this being compensation for the loss of the former school playing 
fields on this site.  

   

20.Suffolk Wildlife Trust – No objection.  
 

21.Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service – Offer general comments, and require the 
provision of fire hydrants on site. 

  

Representations: 
 

22.Two letters of support received from local residents, although issues raised 
regarding nose and light disturbance from the proposed community centre 
car park. Lockable gates on the car park entrance also requested.  

 
23.Policy: The following policies of the Joint Development Management 

Policies Document and the St Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010 
have been taken into account in the consideration of this application: 

 

1. Joint Development Management Policies Document: 
 

 Policy DM1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 Policy DM2 - Development Principles/Local Distinctiveness 
 Policy DM6 - Flooding and Sustainable Drainage 

 Policy DM7 - Sustainable Design and Construction 
 Policy DM10 - Impact of Development on Sites of 

Biodiversity/Geodiversity Importance 
 Policy DM11 - Protected Species 
 Policy DM12 - Mitigation, Enhancement, Management and Monitoring of 

Biodiversity 
 Policy DM13 – Landscape Features 

 Policy DM14 - Protecting and Enhancing Natural Resources, Minimising 
Pollution and Safeguarding 

 Policy DM20 – Archaeology 

 Policy DM22 – Residential design 
 Policy DM41 – Community facilities and Services 

 Policy DM42 – Open Space, Sport and Recreation Facilities 
 Policy DM45 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans 

 Policy DM46 – Parking Standards 
 

2. St Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010: 

 
 Policy CS1 - Spatial Strategy 

 Policy CS2 – Sustainable Development 
 Policy CS3 – Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 Policy CS4 – Settlement Hierarchy 

 Policy CS5 – Affordable Housing 
 Policy CS7 – Sustainable Transport 

 Policy CS14 – Community Infrastructure 
 

3. Bury Vision 2031: 

 
 Policy BV1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

 Policy BV2 – Housing within Bury St Edmunds 
 Policy BV24 – Safeguarding Educational Establishments 
 Policy BV26 – Green Infrastructure 

Page 44



 
Other Planning Policy: 
 

24.National Planning Policy Framework (2012) core principles and paragraphs 
56 - 68 

 
 
Officer Comment: 

 
25.The issues to be considered in the determination of the application are: 

 
- Principle of Development 
- Indicative design and layout (impact on the character and appearance of 

the area) 
- highway safety 

- ecology and biodiversity 
- drainage 
 

Principle of Development 
 

26.Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended) requires that development be considered in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. For 

the purposes of this application, the development plan is the St 
Edmundsbury Core Strategy, Rural Vision Document 2031, the Joint 

Development Management Policies Document 2015 and the Site Specific 
Allocations DPD. The starting point for decision taking is therefore that 
development not in accordance with the development plan should be 

refused unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Courts have 
reaffirmed the primacy of the Development Plan in Development Control 

decisions. 
 

27.The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and National Planning 

Policy Guidance (NPPG) are material considerations in this case. 
 

28.Policy BV2 of the Bury St. Edmunds Vision 2031 seeks to encourage 
additional housing provision within the defined settlement boundary, to 

which the development proposal accords. This approach is also support by 
Policy CS4 of the St Edmundsbury Core Strategy. However, the proposal 
also needs to be assessed having regard to Policy DM41 of the Joint 

Development Management Policies Document and Policy BV24 of the Bury 
St. Edmunds Vision 2031, both of which require the loss of community 

facilities/services/education establishments to be justified and contain 
relevant exception criteria. 
 

29.Policy DM41 encourages the provision and enhancement of community 
facilities where they contribute to the quality of community life and the 

maintenance of sustainable communities. However, proposals resulting in 
the loss of ‘valued community facilities or services’ will only be permitted 
where: 

 
a) it can be demonstrated that the current use is not economically viable, 

nor likely to become viable and, 

Page 45



b) it can either be demonstrated that there is no local demand for the use 
and that the building/site is not needed for any alternative social, 
community or leisure use; or 

(c) alternative facilities and services are available or replacement provision 
is made, of at least equivalent standard, in a location that is accessible to 

the community it serves with good access by public transport or by cycling 
or walking. 
 

30.In this case both the school and the Newbury Community Association’s 
Community Centre can be classed as ‘valued community facilities’. As 

already explained, the primary school has since relocated to the larger 
former Howard Middle School site where there is a better standard of 
accommodation overall and where also the school has the ability to grow 

according to the increasing demand from new housing in the area. As a 
result there is no great need to retain the existing school buildings in any 

social, community or leisure use, especially when taking into account that 
the redevelopment of the school buildings will help forward-fund the 
provision of enhanced education infrastructure elsewhere in the county, in 

accordance with the primary objective of the policy. 
 

31.With regards to the existing community centre, the application proposes 
the replacement of this facility with a much improved facility, realising the 
Newbury Community Association’s longstanding objective. This would also 

extend to the provision of a new replacement Carousel Children’s Centre 
within the new community centre building. 

 
32.The re-development of the site, with the education facility having already 

been re-located and an improved community centre facility forming part of 

the scheme, accords with the criteria of Policy DM41. 
 

33.Vision 2031 Policy BV24 seeks to safeguard existing educational 
establishments unless, inter alia, unless “there is clear evidence through a 
quantified and documented assessment that now, and in the future, the 

site will no longer be needed for its current purpose and there is no 
community need for the site”. For the reasons set out above, the 

exception test of this policy is considered to have been met. 
 

34.Policy CS5 of the St Edmundsbury Core Strategy requires developments of 
the scale proposed to contribute towards the provision of affordable 
housing. In this case the requirement is 30%. The applicants have 

confirmed that this can be achieved and are willing to enter into a S106 
legal agreement to secure this. An appropriate mix and tenure of dwellings 

will also be secured through this agreement. 
 

35.The proposed development would result in the partial loss of the former 

school playing field (to the south of the footpath adjoining the Tollgate 
playing field), which forms part of a wider area of Council designated 

‘Recreational Open Space’ also including the Tollgate playing field to the 
north. Due regard has to be made in this respect to the provisions of the 
NPPF (specifically Paragraph 74), and Joint Development Management 

Policy DM42. The comments of Sport England in respect of the loss of 
playing fields are also an important consideration. 

 
36.Paragraph 74 of the NPPF exceptionally allows existing open space and 

playing fields to be built on if: 

Page 46



 
i) an assessment has been undertaken which clearly shows the land in 
question to be surplus to requirements, or ii) the loss resulting from the 

proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or better provision 
in terms of quantity, quality in a suitable location, or iii) the development 

is for alternative sports and recreational provision the need for which 
clearly outweighs the loss. Policy DM42 of the Development Management 
Policies Document mirrors this exception test. 

 
37.Sport England has been consulted and they have assessed the proposals 

against their own policies. They have concluded that the application 
proposal meets the following exception tests: 
 

E3 - The development only affects land incapable of forming part of a 
playing pitch and would lead to no loss of ability to use/size of playing 

pitch. 
E4 - Playing field lost would be replaced, equivalent or better in terms 
of quantity, quality and accessibility. 

E5 - The proposed development is for an indoor/outdoor sports facility 
of sufficient benefit to sport to outweigh the detriment caused by the 

loss of playing field. 
 

38.Sport England accept that the site is redundant from an educational 

perspective, and consider that the proposals put forward represent a net 
benefit for sport in terms of quantitative and qualitative improvements to 

meet identified local needs. This support is subject to approval of the 
internal layout of the proposed community centre building, and a financial 
contribution of £40,000 towards qualitative improvements to existing 

community playing fields in the locality. The applicants have accepted the 
requirement for this financial contribution, which can be secured within a 

S106 legal agreement. 
 

39.Subject to the above Sport England requirements, the proposal is 

considered to accord with the requirements and exception tests set out in 
the NPPF and Joint Development Management Policy DM42. 

 
40.Finally, by reusing land that has been previously developed, the proposal 

accords with a core principal of the NPPF, which encourages the effective 
use of land. 

 

41.For the reasons set out above, the proposal accords with Policies CS4 and 
CS5 of the St Edmundsbury Core Strategy, Joint Development 

Management Policies DM41 and DM42, Bury Vision 2031 Policies BV2 and 
BV24, and the relevant policies of the NPPF. The principle of the residential 
redevelopment of the site with the provision of a replacement community 

centre is acceptable. 
 

Indicative design and layout 
 

42.As the application is submitted in outline, with only access for 

consideration at this stage, matters of appearance, scale and landscaping 
have been submitted indicatively to demonstrate that the site is capable of 

successfully accommodating 79 dwellings and a new community centre. 
The submitted scheme also seeks to show how the circulation space, 

Page 47



footpaths and open space areas will link with existing development in the 
area and the Tollgate playing field to the north of the site. 
 

43.The plans indicate a development with a mix of 1.5/2/2.5 houses and 3 
storey flat blocks, along with a 2-storey community centre building. With 

the potential exception of the flat blocks, the scale of the development is 
in-keeping with the surrounding development in the area. Any 3-storey 
development is shown centrally located within the site, which is considered 

appropriate. The location and orientation of the of the community centre 
building demonstrates that it can be accommodated with the required level 

of parking, access, whilst maintaining a prominent position within the site 
viewable from St Olaves Road. 
 

44.The plans also indicate that the site is well served by footpaths and is able 
to link in with the existing public footpath running along the north 

boundary of the site. 
 

45.In terms of design, scale, appearance and overall sustainability. The 

proposed development is considered to perform well when assessed 
against Joint Development Management Policies DM13, DM22 and the 

NPPF. Subject to the submission of detailed plans in respect of elevation 
treatments, scale, landscaping, design and layout, the proposal would not 
harm the wider landscape character or the visual amenities of the area. 

The indicative scheme proposed demonstrates that a detailed scheme is 
capable of being designed in accordance with the requirements of relevant 

development plan policies and the NPPF. 
 

Highway safety 

 
46.Core Strategy Policies CS7 and CS8 seek to secure a sustainable transport 

system and reduce the need to travel through spatial planning and design, 
and where appropriate, secure strategic transport improvements. 
Following on from this Joint Development Management Policies DM2 and 

DM46 requires new development to accord with standards and maintain or 
enhance the safety of the highway network.  

 
47.A Transport Statement (TS) has been submitted with the application that 

has assessed the likely impact on the highway network, taking into 
account existing levels of traffic and likely traffic journeys in and out of the 
development. It concludes that the traffic impact from the development 

can be satisfactorily accommodated within the highway network, and that 
the development would result in an overall reduction in vehicle trips to and 

from the site during the AM peak in comparison with the current baseline 
position. In the afternoon peak periods, the predicted level of additional 
traffic would be minimal and the proposed development would have a 

minimal impact on the local highway network. 
 

48.The indicative proposed parking strategy for the development (including 
the community centre) accords with adopted parking standards. Submitted 
plans allow for a maximum 62 spaces allocated to the proposed 

community centre, and 149 spaces to the residential development 
(including 22 visitor parking spaces). Cycle parking provision also complies 

with the required standard. 
 

Page 48



49.In conclusion the proposed access arrangements to the site are 
acceptable, and the local highway authority raises no objection, subject to 
appropriate conditions. Furthermore, the indicative layout indicates that an 

appropriate level of parking can be achieved. The proposal is considered to 
accord with the requirements of St Edmundsbury Core Strategy Policies 

CS7 and CS8, and Joint Development Management Policies DM2, DM46, 
and paragraph 32 of the NPPF. 
 

Ecology and biodiversity 
 

50.Although the site is not located within an area of known ecological 
importance, the ecological potential of the site has been assessed in the 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment submitted with the application. The 

ecology assessment consists of an extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey of the 
area and has been informed by data obtained from the Suffolk Biodiversity 

Information Service. The report concludes that the site is considered to be 
of only a localised ecology interest and a number of recommendations are 
made helping to ensure that there is a degree of biodiversity 

enhancement. The following recommendations can be secured by 
condition: 

 
- Undertaking an elevated survey of the buildings that are proposed to 

be demolished to determine whether there is any evidence of bat 

roosts. 
- Retaining trees for bat roosts, unless a bat ecologist has carried out an 

inspection and recommended that felling can proceed without harm to 
bats. 

- Ensuring that any tree/shrub clearance takes place outside the bird 

nesting season (March to August) or following an inspection by an 
ecologist. 

- Any future landscaping scheme to include a mix of native tree and 
shrub planting to compensate for any areas/features lost. 

- Any clearance of trees and shrubs should take place outside the bird 

nesting season (March – August). 
- Replacing any displaced bird boxes. 

 
51.Core Strategy Policy CS2 and Joint Development Management Policies 

DM10, DM11, DM12 and DM13 seek to conserve and enhance biodiversity 
through the assessment of the impact of the development and the 
provision of mitigation. The information submitted with the application has 

demonstrated that the impact on protected sites and species is unlikely to 
be significant. As a result the redevelopment of the site, in accordance 

with the recommendations set out in the ecological survey report is 
considered compliant with the policies listed above. 
 

Drainage 
 

52.The site is located in an area at low risk of river flooding (Flood Zone 1), 
however the Environment Agency’s Indicative Surface Water Flood Map 
shows that a small portion of the southern part of the site adjacent St 

Olaves road is within an area at risk of surface water flooding. Locating 
built development away from these areas (as indicatively shown on the 

site layout plan), as well as the incorporation of raised floor levels where 
appropriate mitigates for this risk. 
 

Page 49



53.The applicants have submitted a Flood Risk Assessment that includes an 
outline surface water drainage strategy. This proposes the use of 
infiltration drainage techniques that have been designed to accommodate 

the critical 100-year plus climate change storm event in accordance with 
current technical guidance. Where appropriate other SuDS systems can be 

incorporated, the overall strategy has been developed based on greenfield 
run-off rates. The County Flood and Water Management officer has 
accepted the proposed drainage strategy, and an appropriate condition 

can be attached to any permission requiring the precise details of the 
SuDS and/or positive drainage system to be submitted and agreed. 

 
54.In terms of foul water drainage, the proposed development will discharge 

via a gravity foul water drainage network into the existing public sewer 

network located within St Olaves Road located to the south of the site. 
Anglian Water has not objected to the development, and any required 

improvements to the existing foul drainage system in the area can be 
required to be agreed and implemented before the occupation of any 
dwelling by condition. Any developer will also have to enter into a legal 

agreement with Anglian Water prior to final connection. 
 

55.In conclusion, for the above reasons it has been demonstrated that the 
application can be undertaken in a sustainable manner without increasing 
the flood risk to the proposed development, and in accordance with 

paragraph 9 of the Technical Guide to the NPPF and Joint Development 
Management Policy DM6. 

 
Other matters 

 

56.Archaeology - the impact of the proposed development is covered by a 
desk based archaeological assessment. The school and its adjacent playing 

field lies in an area of archaeological potential, and represents a relatively 
large open space in an area that was developed largely without 
archaeological recording, prior to the introduction of planning guidance 

relating to archaeological remains. Thus, given the potential, the lack of 
previous investigation and large size of the proposed development area, 

there is considerable potential for encountering archaeological remains at 
this location. The proposed works would cause significant ground 

disturbance that has potential to damage any archaeological deposits and 
below ground heritage assets that exist. 
 

57.In accordance with para. 141 of the NPPF, the County Archaeologist 
requests that a programme of archaeological work be undertaken prior to 

the commencement of development. This can be secured by way of an 
appropriately worded condition. Development in accordance with this 
condition satisfies the requirements of Joint Development Management 

Policy DM20 and paragraphs 128 and 141 of the NPPF.  
 

58.Neighbour amenity – The site is surrounded by residential development to 
the west and south, on the opposite side of St Olaves Road, and to the 
east, along Eagle Walk. The indicative layout only proposes a small 

amount of development where the boundaries directly adjoin existing 
development, and it has been demonstrated that adequate amenity space 

and separation distances are achievable. The comments of local residents 
are noted, however the issues raised can be dealt with through the 
submission of a construction deliveries plan (by condition) and through the 

Page 50



submission of details as reserved matters. Whilst the full impact on 
residential amenity will be assessed at the reserved matters stage, based 
on the indicative drawings submitted, it has been satisfactorily 

demonstrated that a development of 79 dwellings and a replacement 
community centre can be accommodated with limited direct impact on the 

amenity of neighbouring residents. 
 

59.Public Rights of Way – The comments of the County Public Rights of Way 

officer and the request for footpath improvements are noted. However, it 
is considered that the impact from the proposed development, in terms of 

additional usage of the path, would not be significant. This takes into 
account the loss of the existing school, and the fact that not all new 
residents of the development will use the path on a regular basis. The 

requested upgrading of the path is not required to make the development 
acceptable, and therefore a financial contribution, or upgrading works, 

cannot be required in this case. 
 

Conclusion: 

 
60.The application proposal has been assessed against the relevant policies of 

the development plan and the NPPF. The development is in a sustainable 
location and whilst it does involve the loss of some open space and an 
existing community centre, the application has demonstrated that  

additional indoor sport facilities will be provided, along with a financial 
contribution towards enhanced playing fields elsewhere in the local area. 

The community centre itself will be replaced with a much improved facility 
within the site that has the support of the local community. The principle 
of the development accords with the development plan and the NPPF. 

 
61.The proposed development has a number of positive attributes which lend 

support to the scheme. The indicative site layout shows that a satisfactory 
layout can be provided capable of achieving good design whilst respecting 
local character and appearance and the amenity of local residents. The 

development would also provide economic benefits in terms of the creation 
of short term jobs and local spending likely to be generated by the 

proposed residents. In addition it would bring about societal benefits in 
terms of contributing towards the objectively assessed housing need 

within the District. 
 

62.Subject to appropriate conditions set out below, the impact on the local 

highway infrastructure has been demonstrated to be acceptable. The wider 
impact on local infrastructure in terms of schools and libraries is mitigated 

for with the provision of financial contributions secured through a S106 
legal agreement. This is considered necessary to make the development 
acceptable. 

 
63.In conclusion, the principle and detail of the development is considered to 

be acceptable and in compliance with relevant development plan policies 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Recommendation: 
 

64.It is recommended that planning permission be APPROVED subject to the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure financial contributions 
towards enhanced education and library provision, the replacement 

Page 51



community centre facility, improvements to existing playing fields in the 
area, and the provision of 30% affordable housing. The following 
conditions would also apply: 

 
1. Application for the approval of the matters reserved by conditions of this 

permission shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  The 
development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than whichever is 

the latest of the following dates:- 
 

i. The expiration of three years from the date of this permission;  
or 
ii. The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved 

matters; or,  
iii. In the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last 

such matter to be approved. 
 
Reason: To conform with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale, (hereinafter 

called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority before any development begins and 
the development shall be carried out as approved. 

 
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and to enable to the Local 

Planning Authority to exercise proper control over these aspects of the 
development. 

 
3. No development shall commence beyond slab level until samples of the 

facing and roofing materials to be used have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is 
satisfactory. 

 
4. Prior to the commencement of development application details of a surface 

water drainage scheme will be submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the 

Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter 
managed and maintained in accordance with the approved outline 

drainage strategy by Rossi Long Consulting (ref:- SK02 Rev P3 dated 
03/08/17). Details of the scheme will include: 
 

- Details of further infiltration testing on site in accordance with BRE 365 
to verify the permeability of the site (trial pits to be located where 

soakaways are proposed and repeated runs for each trial hole). 
Borehole records should also be submitted in support of soakage 
testing. 

- Dimensioned drawings of the main aspects of surface water drainage 
system (including an impermeable area plan). 

- Modelling results (or similar method) to demonstrate that the 
infiltration device has been adequately sized to contain the critical 
100yr+CC event for the catchment area they serve. Each device should 

Page 52



be designed using the nearest tested infiltration rate to which they are 
located. A suitable factor of safety should be applied to the infiltration 
rate during design. 

- Infiltration devices shall only be used where they do not pose a threat 
to groundwater. There shall be at least 1.2m of unsaturated ground 

between base of the device and the groundwater table.  
- Proposals for water quality control - Demonstration of adequate 

treatment for surface water shall be submitted. SuDS features should 

demonstrate betterment to water quality due to the site being in a 
Source Protection Zone.  

- If individual soakaways are being used they will be at least 5m away 
from any foundation (or more depending on strata). 

- Infiltration devices should aim to have a half drain time of less than 

24hours. 
- Modelling of any pipe network in the 1 in 30yr rainfall event to show no 

above ground flooding. 
- Topographic plans shall be submitted depicting all safe exceedance flow 

paths in case of a blockage within the main SW system and/or flows in 

excess of a 1 in 100 year rainfall event. These flow paths will 
demonstrate that the risks to people and property are kept to a 

minimum.  
- A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 

development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any 

public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to 
secure the operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its 

lifetime.  
- Arrangements to enable any Surface water drainage within any private 

properties to be accessible and maintained including information and 

advice on responsibilities to be supplied to future owners. 
 

Reason: To prevent the development from causing increased flood risk off 
site over the lifetime of the development (by ensuring the inclusion of 
volume control); To ensure the development is adequately protected from 

flooding (and to maximise allowable aperture size on control devices); To 
ensure the development does not cause increased pollution of the 

downstream watercourse; To ensure clear arrangements are in place for 
ongoing operation and maintenance. 

 
5. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of all 

Sustainable Urban Drainage System components and piped networks have 

been submitted, in an approved form, to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority for inclusion on the Lead Local Flood Authority's 

Flood Risk Asset Register. 
 
Reason: To ensure all flood risk assets and their owners are recorded onto 

the LLFA's statutory flood risk asset register. 
 

6. No development shall commence until details of a construction surface 
water management plan detailing how surface water and storm water will 
be managed on the site during construction is submitted to and agreed in 

writing by the local planning authority. The construction surface water 
management plan shall be implemented and thereafter managed and 

maintained in accordance with the approved plan. 
 

Page 53



Reason: Required pre-commencement to ensure the development does 
not cause increased pollution of the watercourse in line with the River 
Basin Management Plan during construction. 

 
7. No development approved by this planning permission shall commence 

until the following components to deal with the risks associated with 
contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority: 

 
i) A site investigation scheme (based on the approved Preliminary Risk 

Assessment (PRA) within the approved Desk Study), to provide 
information for a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may 
be affected, including those off site. 

ii) The results of a site investigation based on i) and a detailed risk 
assessment, including a revised Conceptual Site Model (CSM). 

iii) Based on the risk assessment in ii), an options appraisal and 
remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken. The strategy shall include a 

plan providing details of how the remediation works shall be judged to be 
complete and arrangements for contingency actions. The plan shall also 

detail a long term monitoring and maintenance plan as necessary. 
 
No occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take place 

until a verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the 
remediation strategy in iii) is submitted and approved, in writing, by the 

Local Planning Authority. The long term monitoring and maintenance plan 
in iii) shall be updated and be implemented as approved.  
 

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to 
be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise 

agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out 
until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the local 
planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be 

dealt with and obtained written approval from the local planning authority. 
The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved. 

 
Reason: To protect and prevent the pollution of controlled waters, future 

end users of the land, neighbouring land, property and ecological systems 
from potential pollutants associated with current and previous land uses in 
line with National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), paragraphs 109, 

120, 121, Environment Agency Groundwater Protection: Principles and 
Practice (GP3), Policy CS2 (Sustainable Development) of the Core Strategy 

and Policy DM14 of the Joint Development Management Policy. This 
condition requires matters to be agreed prior to commencement since it 
relates to consideration of below ground matters that require resolution 

prior to further development taking place, to ensure any contaminated 
material is satisfactorily dealt with.  

 
8. Before any part of the development is occupied details of the areas to be 

provided for storage and presentation of Refuse/Recycling bins shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety before the 

development is brought into use and shall be retained thereafter for no 
other purpose. 
 

Page 54



Reason: To ensure that refuse recycling bins are not stored on the 
highway causing obstruction and dangers for other users.  
 

9. Before the development is commenced details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing the means to 

prevent the discharge of surface water from the development onto the 
highway. The approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety before 
the access is first used and shall be retained thereafter in its approved 

form. 
 

Reason: Required pre-commencement to prevent hazards caused by 
flowing water or ice on the highway both during construction and post 
development.   

 
10.No dwelling shall be occupied until the carriageways and footways serving 

that dwelling have been constructed to at least Binder course level or 
better in accordance with the approved details except with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided for the safety of 

residents and the public. 
 

11.All HGV and construction traffic movements to and from the site over the 

duration of the construction period shall be subject to a Deliveries 
Management Plan which shall be submitted to the planning authority for 

approval a minimum of 28 days before any deliveries of materials 
commence. No HGV movements shall be permitted to and from the site 
other than in accordance with the routes defined in the Plan. The site 

operator shall maintain a register of complaints and record of actions 
taken to deal with such complaints at the site office as specified in the Plan 

throughout the period of occupation of the site. 
 
Reason: To reduce and / or remove as far as is reasonably possible the 

effects of HGV traffic in sensitive areas. 
 

12.Before the access is first used clear visibility at a height of 0.6 metres 
above the carriageway level shall be provided and thereafter permanently 

maintained in that area between the nearside edge of the metalled 
carriageway and a line 2.4m metres from the nearside edge of the 
metalled carriageway at the centre line of the access point (X dimension) 

and a distance of 43m metres in each direction along the edge of the 
metalled carriageway from the centre of the access (Y dimension). 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 2 Class A of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no 

obstruction over 0.6 metres high shall be erected, constructed, planted or 
permitted to grow within the areas of the visibility splays. 

 
Reason: To ensure vehicles exiting the drives would have sufficient 
visibility to enter the public highway safely, and vehicles on the public 

highway would have sufficient warning of a vehicle emerging to take 
avoiding action. 

 
13.No development shall take place within the area indicated [the whole site] 

until the implementation of a programme of archaeological work has been 

Page 55



secured, in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance 

and research questions; and: 
 

a. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 
b. The programme for post investigation assessment 
c. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 

d. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis 
and records of the site investigation 

e. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records 
of the site investigation 
f. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake 

the works set out within the Written Scheme of Investigation. g. The site 
investigation shall be completed prior to development, or in such other 

phased arrangement, as agreed and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: Required pre-commencement to safeguard archaeological assets 
within the approved development boundary from impacts relating to any 

groundworks associated with the development scheme and to ensure the 
proper and timely investigation, recording, reporting and presentation of 
archaeological assets affected by this development, in accordance with 

Policy HC9 of Replacement St Edmundsbury Borough Local Plan 2016, 
Policy CS2 of St Edmundsbury Core Strategy 2010 and the National 

Planning Policy Framework (2012). 
 

14.No building shall be occupied until the site investigation and post 

investigation assessment has been completed, submitted to, and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in accordance with the 

programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under 
Condition 1 and the provision made for analysis, publication and 
dissemination of results and archive deposition. 

 
Reason: To safeguard archaeological assets within the approved 

development boundary from impacts relating to any groundworks 
associated with the development scheme and to ensure the proper and 

timely investigation, recording, reporting and presentation of 
archaeological assets affected by this development, in accordance with 
Policy HC9 of Replacement St Edmundsbury Borough Local Plan 2016, 

Policy CS2 of St Edmundsbury Core Strategy 2010 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2012). 

 
15.Each dwelling proposed with dedicated off street parking shall be provided 

with an electric vehicle charge point prior to its first occupation. Details of 

the electric vehicle charge equipment to be installed at the site shall have 
first been agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. All charge 

points shall be provided within at least 2.0 metres of the associated 
designated parking space. 
 

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the 
site in line with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 

35 and Policy DM2 (k) of the Joint Development Management Policies 
Document. 

 

Page 56



 
 
 

 
Documents: 

 
All background documents including application forms, drawings and other 
supporting documentation relating to this application can be viewed online 

DC/17/1047/OUT 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 57

http://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OQ791IPDGVE00


This page is intentionally left blank



DC/17/1047/OUT 

 

Former Howard Community Primary School St Olaves Road Bury St Edmunds 

 

 

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Retained Existing Tree

ST. OLAVES ROAD

ST. OLAVES ROAD

PUBLIC OPEN 
SPACE

PARKING FOR
COMMUNITY 
CENTRE

(62 SPACES)
NEWBURY
COMMUNITY 
CENTRE

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

Development Control Committee 
7 December 2017 

 

Planning Application DC/17/2237/HH – 

Tamarisk, 4 Barrow Hill, Barrow 

 
Date 
Registered: 

 

26.10.2017 Expiry Date: 21.12.2017 

Case 
Officer: 

 

Savannah Cobbold Recommendation: Approve Application 

Parish: 

 

Barrow Cum 

Denham 
 

Ward: Barrow 

Proposal: Householder Planning Application - (i) Single storey side extension 

including attached garage (demolition of existing garage) (ii) 
Replacement of existing flat roof over rear extension with pitched 

roof 
 

Site: Tamarisk, 4 Barrow Hill, Barrow 

 
Applicant: Mr Chris Rawlings 

 
Synopsis: 
Application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the (Listed Building 

and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Associated matters. 
 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Committee determine the attached application and 
associated matters. 

 
CONTACT CASE OFFICER: 

Savannah Cobbold 
Email:   savannah.cobbold@westsuffolk.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01284 757614 

 

 
DEV/SE/17/048 

Page 63

Agenda Item 6



Background: 
 
The application has been referred to the Development Control 

Committee as the applicant is an employee of St Edmundsbury Borough 
Council.  

 
Proposal: 
 

1. The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a single 
storey side extension including attached garage, following the demolition 

of existing garage and the replacement of existing flat roof over single 
storey rear extension with a pitched roof.  

 

2. The proposed single storey side extension will extend 5.5 metres from the 
side elevation of the existing dwelling, measure a maximum of 13.7 

metres in length and 5.4 metres in height.  
 
Application Supporting Material: 

 
 Location plan 

 Existing floor plan and elevations 
 Proposed floor plan 
 Proposed elevations 

 Proposed section 
 Proposed roof plan 

 Existing block plan and site layout 
 Proposed block plan and site layout 
 Application form 

 Biodiversity checklist 
 

Site Details: 
 

3. The application site is located within the settlement boundary for Barrow 

West, located on an end plot facing Barrow Hill. The site comprises a 
detached bungalow and its curtilage with a garden to the rear and 

driveway at the front of the property providing off-street parking. The 
bungalow is located within an area of properties of mixed characteristics.  

 
Planning History: 
 
Reference Proposal Status Decision Date 
 

DC/17/2237/HH Householder Planning 
Application - (i) Single 
storey side extension 

including attached garage 
(demolition of existing 

garage) (ii) Replacement 
of existing flat roof over 
rear extension with pitched 

roof 

Pending 
Decision 

 

 

 
Consultations: 
 

4. Highways: No comments received. 

Page 64



 
5. Countryside Access Team: No comments received. 

 

Representations: 
 

6. Parish Council: No comments received. 
 

7. Neighbours: No representations received.  

 
8. Policy: The following policies of the Joint Development Management 

Policies Document and the St Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010 
have been taken into account in the consideration of this application: 

 

1. Joint Development Management Policies Document: 
 Policy DM1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

 Policy DM2 – Creating Places Development Principles and Local 
Distinctiveness 

 Policy DM24 – Alterations or Extensions to Dwellings, including Self-

Contained annexes and Development within the Curtilage   
 

2. St Edmundsbury Core Strategy December 2010 
 Policy SCS3 – Design Quality and Local Distinctiveness  

 

Other Planning Policy: 
 

9. National Planning Policy Framework (2012) core principles and paragraphs 
56 - 68 

 

Officer Comment: 
 

10.The issues to be considered in the determination of the application are: 
 Principle of Development 
 Impacts on residential amenity 

 Impacts street scene/character of the area 
 Design and Form 

 
11.Policy DM24 states that planning permission for alterations or extensions 

to existing dwellings, self-contained annexes and ancillary development 
within the curtilage of dwellings will be acceptable provided that the 
proposal respects the character, scale and design of existing dwellings and 

the character and appearance of the immediate and surrounding area, will 
not result in over-development of the dwelling and curtilage and shall not 

adversely affect the residential amenity of occupants of nearby properties. 
 

12.In the case of this application, the dwelling is located within a curtilage 

which is able to accommodate the scale of extension without over-
development occurring.  

 
13.No adverse impact is anticipated to arise upon the residential amenity of 

the area as the proposed extension is of single storey nature. No 

overbearing impact is considered to arise upon Number 6, located at the 
south of the site, as the proposal is located just over 2 metres away from 

the boundary. There are no windows proposed on the side elevation of the 
extension and there are no openings in the side elevation of Number 6. In 
addition, this neighbouring property is a two storey dwelling and in 2015 

Page 65



had planning permission granted for a two storey side extension located 
on the northern elevation, facing the application dwelling within less than 
1 metre of the boundary. No significant impact upon 2 Johnson Road, 

located at the west of the site, is considered to arise as there is adequate 
separation distance between this property and the proposal. There is also 

a 2 metre high boarded fence located on between the boundary of Number 
6 and the application site and Number 2 Johnson Road. This will contribute 
to the screening of the proposal from these two properties. In addition, 

there are no immediate neighbouring properties at the north of the site.  
 

14.Although the proposal will be visible from Barrow Hill and Johnson Road, 
no significant impact is considered to arise upon the street scene or 
character of the area as the dwelling is set back from the highway and the 

application property is located within an area of properties of mixed 
characteristics. The extension is also considered to respect the host 

dwelling as it is of an appropriate scale and follows the ridge height of the 
original dwelling. The proposed side extension will extend approximately 
an additional 1.6 metres from the side elevation in comparison to the 

existing garage.  
 

15.The proposed extension is considered to be of an appropriate scale and 
design as to respect the host dwelling and utilises matching materials such 
as roof tiles and brick to ensure that the materials used on the extension 

blend in with those used on the original dwelling.  
 

16.The proposed change in roof will have no impact upon the residential 
amenity of surrounding properties given the small scale of the roof. 
Although the proposed roof will be visible to both neighbouring properties, 

no overbearing impact is thought to arise given the small scale of the 
development. The proposed roof change will be visible from Johnson Road, 

however no adverse impact is considered to arise as it respects the scale 
and design of the host dwelling. In addition, 2 Johnson Road consists of a 
single storey rear extension with a pitched roof. The design also includes 

matching roof tiles to blend in with those used on the original dwelling. 
 

Conclusion: 
 

17.In conclusion, the principle and detail of the development is considered to 
be acceptable and in compliance with relevant development plan policies 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
Recommendation: 

 
18.It is recommended that planning permission be APPROVED subject to the 

following conditions: 

1. Time limit 
2. Compliance with plans  

 
Documents: 
 

All background documents including application forms, drawings and other 
supporting documentation relating to this application can be viewed online  

https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OYD8AKPDK3Y
00 

Page 66

https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OYD8AKPDK3Y00
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OYD8AKPDK3Y00
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OYD8AKPDK3Y00


DC/17/2237/HH 

Tamarisk, 4 Barrow Hill, Barrow 

 

 

 

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Drawing No:

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Project Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
4 Barrow Hill, Barrow, Suffolk IP29 5DX  Single storey extension

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Proposed block plan and Site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Oct 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
1.200 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
2017 04 310

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
2.0m close boarded fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
2.0m close boarded fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
1.0m chainlink fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
1.0m chainlink fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
no boundary treatment

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
oil tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
lawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
lawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
SITE LAYOUT 1.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
BLOCK PLAN 1.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Barrow Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Johnson Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
permeable tarmac surfacing

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
soakaway

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
soakaway



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Control Committee 

7 December 2017 
 

Planning Application DC/15/2151/OUT –  

Great Wilsey Park, Little Wratting 
 

Date 

Registered: 

22.10.2015 Expiry Date:  

Case 

Officer:  

Chris Rand Recommendation:  Approve 

Parish: 

 

Little Wratting 

Kedington  

Haverhill 

Ward:  Withersfield 

Proposal: Outline Application (Means of Access to be considered) - 

Residential development of up to 2,500 units (within use classes 

C2/C3); two primary schools; two local centres including retail, 

community and employment uses (with use classes 

A1/A2/A3/A4/A5, B1 and D1/D2; open space; landscaping and 

associated infrastructure 

  

Site: Great Wilsey Park, Wilsey Road, Little Wratting, Suffolk 

 

Applicant: Mrs H J Pelly and Hallam Land Management Limited 

 

Synopsis: 

Application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the (Listed Building 

and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and associated matters. 

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that the Committee consider the amendment to the conditions 

previously determined. 

 

CONTACT CASE OFFICER: 

Chris Rand 

Email: chris.rand@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01284 757352 

 
DEV/SE/17/049 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7

mailto:chris.rand@westsuffolk.gov.uk


Background: 

1. Planning application DC/15/2151/OUT was considered by Committee at 

its meeting on 2 March 2017 (Report No: DEV/SE/17/011) where it was 

resolved to grant planning permission subject to the applicant first 

entering into a Section 106 agreement to secure essential 

infrastructure. Progress in these negotiations is proceeding well and a 

draft decision notice has been prepared. 

 

2. During the ongoing discussions, the applicant has asked whether the 

implementation periods for the permission could be adjusted from that 

reported. Members may recall that the Officer’s report requested the 

standard time limit of 3 years for commencement of development and a 

non-standard period of 10 years for the submission of details. 

Proposed Amendment: 

3. The applicant is seeking an amendment to the time period from 3 years 

to 5 years for commencement and from 10 years to 15 years for the 

submission of details. 

Officer Comment: 

4. Given the scale the proposed development, it will take many years to 

develop the entire site in a series of phases. It is for this reason that 

officers originally suggested an extended period for the submission of 

details to 10 years, in line with some of the smaller strategic sites 

previously considered around Bury St Edmunds and North West 

Haverhill. However, on reflection and following discussion with the 

applicant, it is likely that not all details will have been submitted by the 

time the 10 year limit is reached, as this site is significantly larger than 

any of the others previously considered. Accordingly, the extended time 

period for the submission of details is considered both appropriate and 

reasonable. 

 

5. The application site is currently owned by a private individual rather 

than a development company. Experience elsewhere has demonstrated 

that the standard three year time limit for commencement can be 

difficult to achieve where land first has to be marketed. In this instance, 

an increase of this time period from 3 years to 5 years is considered 

appropriate and reasonable. 

Recommendation: 

6. It is recommended that the amendment being sought to vary the time 

limit for implementation of development from 3 years to 5 years and 

the period for the submission of details being extended from 10 years 

to 15 years be APPROVED.  

Page 72



Documents:  

All background documents including application forms, drawings and other 

supporting documentation relating to this application can be viewed online:  

https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s18124/15%202151%20OUT

%20Haverhill.pdf 

https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=NWKD8MPDL0O00  

Alternatively, hard copies are also available to view at Planning and Regulatory 

Services, West Suffolk House, Western Way, Bury St. Edmunds, Suffolk, IP33 

3YU 

Page 73

https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s18124/15%202151%20OUT%20Haverhill.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s18124/15%202151%20OUT%20Haverhill.pdf
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=NWKD8MPDL0O00
https://planning.westsuffolk.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=NWKD8MPDL0O00


This page is intentionally left blank



DC/15/2151/OUT Gt Wilsey Park Little Wratting 

 

P
age 75



 

P
age 76



Hallam Land Management
Great Wilsey Park
Haverhill

INDICATIVE PHASING
5055-L-106 rev D

Notes:

Revision D: August 2015
Revision C: August 2015
Revision B: July 2015
Revision A: April 2015

Scale: 1:5000@A1 / 1:10000@A3
Date: March 2015
Drawn: MP / NJE

fpcr

masterplanning  
environmental assessment    

landscape design 
urban design

ecology 
architecture    

arboriculture    

FPCR Environment and Design Ltd
Lockington Hall
Lockington 
Derby   DE74 2RH

t:   01509 672772
f:   01509 674565
e:  mail@fpcr.co.uk
w: www.fpcr.co.uk

N

Kedington

Calford 
Green

Great Field 
Plantation

Great Wilsey 
Farm

A143 Haverhill R
oad

St
ur

m
er

 R
oa

d

Phase 1a - 1d

Phase 2a - 2d

Phase 
1C

Phase 
1D

Phase 
1A

Phase 
2A

Phase 
2B

Phase 
2C

Phase 
3A

Phase 
3B

Phase 
2D

Phase 
2C

School - 
Phase 2D

Phase 
1B

Primary circulation and bus route

Haverhill

Phase 3a - 3b

Great Field 
Plantation

Mary Cole’s 
Grove

Coupals Road

Site Boundary 

Phase 
1D

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 02/11/2017 2pm St Edmundsbury Development Control Committee
	Minutes


	4 Planning Application DC/17/1765/RM - Western Part of the Suffolk Business Park Extension, Bury St Edmunds
	DEV.SE.17.046 Suffolk Business Park - Location Plan
	DEV.SE.17.046 Suffolk Business Park - Site Plan

	5 Planning Application DC/17/1047/OUT - Former Howard Community Primary School, St Olaves Road, Bury St Edmunds
	DEV.SE.17.047 Former Howard Community Primnary School - Location Plan
	DEV.SE.17.047 Former Howard Community Primnary School - Site Plan

	6 Planning Application DC/17/2237/HH - Tamarisk, 4 Barrow Hill, Barrow
	DEV.SE.17.048 Barrow Hill, Barrow - Location Plan
	DEV.SE.17.048 Barrow Hill, Barrow - Site Plan

	7 Planning Application DC/15/2151/OUT - Great Wilsey Park, Little Wratting
	DEV.SE.17.049 Great Wilsey Park - Location Plan
	DEV.SE.17.049 Great Wilsey Park - Site Plan




